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In the first quarter of 2016, we recorded restructuring charges attributable to a reduction in force in the United States
and the closure of our operations at our Indian subsidiary.

Interest expense and other income (expense), net

Year Ended December 31, Year-Over-Year Change
2016 2015 2014 2015 to 2016 2014 to 2015
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Interest expense and other income
(expense), net $ (639) $ 94 $ 143 $ (733) (780) %  $ (49) (34) %
Percentage of total net revenue (11) %   2 %   3 %  

Interest expense and other income (expense), net primarily consisted of interest expense on our senior secured
convertible notes, partially offset by interest income on our investments, as well as foreign currency transaction
activity and other non-operating items.  We paid the accumulated interest for the period from issuance of the
convertible notes through August 15, 2016 in-kind through the issuance of an identical new senior-secured convertible
note. On February 15, 2017, we paid the accumulated interest for the period from August 2016 to February 15, 2017
in-kind through the issuance of an identical new senior-secured convertible note.

41

Edgar Filing: MALLESCH EILEEN A - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 5



Table of Contents

Income Tax Provision

Year ended December 31, Year-Over-Year Change
2016 2015 2014 2015 to 2016 2014 to 2015
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Income tax provision $ 45 $ 86 $ 107 $ (41) (48) %  $ (21) (20) %
Percentage of total net revenue  1 %   2 %   2 %  

Our income tax provisions were primarily attributable to taxes on earnings of our foreign subsidiaries and branches.

As of December 31, 2016, we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $184 million for U.S. federal
income tax purposes and approximately $117 million for state income tax purposes that are available to reduce future
income tax liabilities to the extent permitted under federal and state income tax laws. These net operating loss
carryforwards expire from 2017 to 2036. Utilization of our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be
subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue
Code (IRC); and similar state provisions. Section 382 of the IRC (Section 382) imposes limitations on a corporation’s
ability to utilize its NOLs, if it experiences an “ownership change.” In general terms, an ownership change may result
from transactions increasing the ownership percentage of certain stockholders in the stock of the corporation by more
than 50% over a three year period. In the event of an ownership change, utilization of the NOLs would be subject to
an annual limitation under Section 382 determined by multiplying the value of our common stock at the time of the
ownership change by the applicable long-term tax exempt rate. We have not completed a Section 382 study in recent
years; however, should a study be completed, certain NOLs may be subject to such limitations. Any future annual
limitation may result in the expiration of NOLs before utilization.

In 2017, we anticipate that our effective income tax rate will continue to be less than the federal statutory tax rate
because of expected losses.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we had net deferred tax assets of approximately $89 million and $80 million,
respectively. Because of uncertainties regarding the realization of these deferred tax assets, we had recorded a full
valuation allowance as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2016, we had cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments totaling $9.8 million compared
with a combined balance of $20.2 million at December 31, 2015. On March 14, 2016, the Company entered into a
10% Senior Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with the purchasers of
$8,000,000 principal amount of 10% Senior Secured Convertible Notes due August 15, 2018 (the “Notes”), at par, in a
private placement transaction effected pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Notes bear interest at the annual rate of 10% and interest is payable
semi-annually in cash or in kind through the issuance of identical new Notes, or with a combination of the two, at our
option.

In 2016, we used $17.9 million in operating activities, which primarily resulted from the net loss of $32.0 million,
adjusted for non-cash charges and gains, which included impairment of goodwill of $9.9 million, stock-based
compensation expenses of $2.2 million, depreciation and amortization expenses of $1.1 million, accrued interest of
$0.7 million, and changes to operating assets and liabilities of $0.3 million. The changes in assets and liabilities
primarily related to the timing of the collection of receivables from customers and payments to vendors, including
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purchases of and increases in inventory.

In 2015, we used $27.5 million in operating activities, which primarily resulted from the net loss of $31.5 million,
adjusted for non-cash charges and gains, which included stock-based compensation expenses of $3.7 million and
depreciation and amortization expenses of $0.9 million, and changes to operating assets and liabilities of $0.6 million.
The changes in assets and liabilities primarily related to the timing of the collection of receivables from customers and
payments to vendors, including purchases of and increases in inventory.
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In 2014, we used $26.3 million in operating activities, which primarily resulted from the net loss of $32.7 million,
adjusted for non-cash charges and gains, which included stock-based compensation expenses of $4.6 million and
depreciation and amortization expenses of $1.4 million, and changes to operating assets and liabilities of $0.3 million.
The changes in assets and liabilities primarily related to the payments to vendors, including purchases of inventory.

Our investing activities in 2016 primarily consisted of $0.6 million expended for purchases of fixed assets. Remaining
investing activities consisted of investing our cash in marketable securities, which did not affect our liquidity. Our
investing activities in 2015 primarily consisted of $1.2 million expended for purchases of fixed assets. Remaining
investing activities consisted of investing our cash in marketable securities, which did not affect our liquidity. Our
investing activities in 2014 primarily consisted of $0.6 million expended for purchases of fixed assets. Remaining
investing activities consisted of investing our cash in marketable securities, which did not affect our liquidity.

Our financing activities in 2016 primarily consisted of $7.9 million in net proceeds received from the issuance of
senior secured convertible notes and $0.4 million in proceeds purchases of common stock under our employee stock
purchase plan. Our financing activities in 2015 primarily consisted of $21.4 million in net proceeds received from the
sale of common stock though a public offering and $1.8 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options and
purchases of common stock under our employee stock purchase plan. Our financing activities in 2014 primarily
consisted of proceeds from the exercise of stock options and sales under our employee stock purchase plan.

Our future liquidity and capital requirements are expected to vary from quarter to quarter, depending on numerous
factors, including:

· level of revenue;
· cost, timing and success of technology development efforts;
· inventory levels, timing of product shipments and length of billing and collection cycles;
· fabrication costs, including mask costs, of our ICs, currently under development;
· variations in manufacturing yields, materials costs and other manufacturing risks;
· costs of acquiring other businesses and integrating the acquired operations;
· profitability of our business; and
· whether interest payments on the Notes are paid in cash or, at our election, in kind through the issuance of new
Notes with identical terms for the accrued interest.

Going Concern-Working Capital

We expect our cash expenditures to continue to exceed receipts in 2017, as our revenues will not be sufficient to offset
our operating expenses, which include significant research and development expenditures for the expansion and
fabrication of our IC products. The consolidated financial statements presented in Part II, Item 15 of this Report have
been prepared assuming that we will continue as a going concern, and do not include any adjustments that might result
from the outcome of this uncertainty. We have incurred recurring losses from operations, had recurring negative cash
flows, and have a significant accumulated deficit. These conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to
continue as a going concern. We are currently seeking additional financing in order to meet our cash requirements for
the foreseeable future. We may not be able to obtain additional financing as needed on acceptable terms, or at all,
which may require us to reduce our operating costs and other expenditures, including reductions of personnel, salaries
and capital expenditures. Alternatively, or in addition to such potential measures, we may elect to implement other
cost reduction actions as we may determine are necessary and in our best interests, including the possible sale or
cessation of certain of our business
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segments. Any such actions undertaken might limit our opportunities to realize plans for revenue growth and we
might not be able to reduce our costs in amounts sufficient to achieve break-even or profitable operations.

If we were to raise additional capital through sales of our equity securities, our stockholders would suffer dilution of
their equity ownership. If we engage in debt financing, we may be required to accept terms that restrict our ability to
incur additional indebtedness, prohibit us from paying dividends, repurchasing our stock or making investments, and
force us to maintain specified liquidity or other ratios, any of which could harm our business, operating results and
financial condition. If we need additional capital and cannot raise it on acceptable terms, we may not be able to,
among other things:

· develop or enhance our products;
· continue to expand our product development and sales and marketing organizations;
· acquire complementary technologies, products or businesses;
· expand operations, in the United States or internationally;
· hire, train and retain employees; or
· respond to competitive pressures or unanticipated working capital requirements.
Our failure to do any of these things could seriously harm our ability to execute our business strategy and may force
us to curtail our research and development plans or existing operations.

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The impact that our contractual obligations as of September 30, 2017 are expected to have on our liquidity and cash
flow in future periods is (in thousands):

Payment Due by Period
Less than More than

Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating leases $ 2,185 $ 728 $ 1,457 $  — $  —

Our software licenses related to computer-aided design software.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements or obligations that are reasonably likely to have a material
current or future effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources.

Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements under which we may agree to indemnify the
counter-party from losses relating to a breach of representations and warranties, a failure to perform certain covenants,
or claims and losses arising from certain external events as outlined within the particular contract, which may include,
for example, losses arising from litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such indemnification clauses may
not be subject to maximum loss clauses. We have also entered into indemnification agreements with our officers and
directors. No material amounts related to these indemnifications are reflected in our consolidated financial statements
for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 or 2014.
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The names of our directors and certain information about each of them are set forth below.

Name Age Position(s) with the Company
Leonard Perham 74 Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
Stephen L. Domenik(1)(2) 65 Director
Daniel Lewis (1)(2) 68 Director
Daniel O’Neal (1) 46 Director

(1) Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of Compensation Committee
The principal occupations and positions for at least the past five years of our directors are described below. There are
no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

Len Perham.  Mr. Perham was appointed to be our chief executive officer and president and a member of our board of
directors in November 2007. Mr. Perham was one of the original investors in MoSys and initially served on our board
of directors from 1991 to 1997. In 2000, Mr. Perham retired from Integrated Device Technology, Inc., where he
served as chief executive officer from 1991 to 2000 and as president and a board member from 1986. From
March 2000 to February 2012, Mr. Perham served as a member of the board of directors of NetLogic
Microsystems, Inc., a fabless semiconductor company, including as chairman for a portion of that time. Mr. Perham
also has been a private investor holding officer and director positions with various private companies. Mr. Perham
holds a B.S. in electrical engineering from Northeastern University. We believe that Mr. Perham’s qualifications to
serve as a director include his tenure as our chief executive officer and as a member of the board of directors, during
which time he has gained a unique and extensive understanding of our company, our business and our long-term
strategy, as well as his experience in the semiconductor industry generally.

Daniel Lewis.    Mr. Lewis has served as the managing member and an owner of GMS Manufacturing Solution LLC,
which provides engineering services to manufacturing companies, since 2013. From 2001 to 2013, he served as chief
executive officer of View Box Group, LLC, which provides management consulting services to small
businesses. Prior to 2001, Mr. Lewis previously served as vice president of worldwide sales at both Xicor, Inc. and
Integrated Device Technology, Inc. Mr. Lewis has also held various sales and technical positions with Accelerant
Networks, Inc. Intel Corporation, Zilog, Inc. and Digital Equipment Corporation. Mr. Lewis holds a B.S. in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Michigan.

Daniel O’Neal.    Mr. O’Neil has served as a partner at Acme Strategy, LLC, a provider of strategic consulting and
advisory services, which he founded, since 2010. From 2008 to 2010, he served as an investment banker at Signal Hill
Capital Group LLC. Prior to 2008, Mr. O’Neil held business development and investment banking positions at Energy
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Services Group, Deutsche Bank AG and BT Alex. Brown. Mr. O’Neil holds an AB from Harvard College and an MBA
from the Stanford University Graduate School of Business.

Stephen L. Domenik.  Mr. Domenik was appointed to our board of directors in June 2012. Since 1995, Mr. Domenik
has been a general partner with Sevin Rosen Funds, a venture capital firm. Since August 2010, Mr. Domenik has
served on the board of directors of Pixelworks, Inc., and, from February 2016 to April 2016, served as its Interim
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Domenik served on the board of directors of Meru Networks, Inc., from January 2014,
and as its chairman from January 2015, until it was acquired in July 2015. Since December 2013, Mr. Domenik has
served on the board of directors of Emcore Corporation. He also served on the board of PLX Technology, Inc. prior to
its acquisition by Avago and on the board of directors of NetLogic Microsystems, Inc. from January 2001 until it was
acquired in February 2012. Mr. Domenik holds a B.S. in Physics and a M.S.E.E. from the University of California at
Berkeley. We believe that Mr. Domenik’s qualifications to serve on our board of directors include his extensive
business experience, having held senior-management positions at several companies in the semiconductor and
software industries and having
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served on the boards of directors of multiple public semiconductor companies. In addition, he has considerable
relevant experience in corporate investments and the strategic development of high-technology companies.

The names of our executive officers and certain information about them are set forth either above or below, as the case
may be:

Name Age Position(s) with the Company
Leonard Perham 74 President and Chief Executive Officer
James W. Sullivan 49 Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer
John Monson 55 Vice President of Marketing and Sales

James W. Sullivan.  Mr. Sullivan became our Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer in January 2008.
From July 2006 until January 2008, Mr. Sullivan served as Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer at
Apptera, Inc., a venture-backed company providing software for mobile advertising, search and commerce. From
July 2002 until June 2006, Mr. Sullivan was the Chief Financial Officer at 8x8, Inc., a provider of
voice-over-internet-protocol communication services. Mr. Sullivan’s prior experience includes various positions at
8x8, Inc. and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. He received a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from New York
University and is a certified public accountant.

John Monson.  Mr. Monson became our Vice President of Marketing in February 2012. In early 2014, he assumed, on
a permanent basis, additional responsibilities for our sales and business development activities and became our Vice
President of Marketing and Sales. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Monson was Vice President of Marketing for
Mellanox Technologies, a supplier of interconnect solutions and services, from 2009 to 2012. From 2007 to 2008,
Mr. Monson was Vice President of the EDC/PhyOptik business line at Inphi Corporation. He joined Inphi Corporation
through a business unit acquisition of Scintera Networks, where he was Vice President of Sales and Marketing from
2005 to 2007. Previously, he held various management positions at PMC-Sierra, Inc., Lucent Technologies and
AT&T Microelectronics. Mr. Monson received a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the
University of Minnesota.

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined that each of the current directors, with the exception of Mr. Perham, is
“independent,” as defined by the listing rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market, or NASDAQ, and the rules and regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. Our board of directors has standing Audit and Compensation
Committees, each of which is comprised solely of independent directors in accordance with the NASDAQ listing
rules. No director qualifies as independent unless the board of directors affirmatively determines that he has no direct
or indirect relationship with us that would impair his independence. We independently review the relationship of the
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Company to any entity employing a director or on whose board of directors he is serving currently.

Compensation Committee interlocks and insider Participation

During 2017, none of our executive officers served as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee
of any entity that had one or more of its executive officers serving as a member of our board of directors or
Compensation Committee.  Messrs. Domenik and Lewis, the Compensation Committee members, were not officers or
employees of ours during 2017 or at any other time.

MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

The information presented below has been modified to reflect the impact of a 1-for-10 reverse stock split effected
February 16, 2017.  See Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the reverse stock
split.
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth compensation information for fiscal years 2017 and 2016 for our chief executive officer
and the next two most highly compensated executive officers. 

Name and principal position Year
Salary
($)

Stock
Option
Awards
($)(1)(2)

Restricted
Stock Awards
($)(1)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation
($)

Total
($)

Leonard Perham 2016 150,000 — — — 150,000
Chief Executive Officer &
President 2017 150,000 — — — 150,000

James Sullivan 2016 234,990 63,114 53,000 55,876 (3) 406,980
Chief Financial Officer & 2017 240,990 — 32,200 37,050 (3) 310,240
Vice President of Finance
John Monson(4) 2016 225,750 71,701 31,800 48,000 (4)
Vice President of Marketing &
Sales 5,644 (3) 382,895

2017 225,750 — 32,200 45,600 (4)     314,838
11,288 (3)

(1) Award amounts reflect the aggregate grant date fair value with respect to awards granted during the years
indicated, as determined pursuant to FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions used to calculate the aggregate grant
date fair value of option and stock awards are set forth in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements
included in item 15 of this Report. These amounts do not reflect actual compensation earned or to be earned by
our named executive officers.

(2) As discussed above under Stock Option Exchange, in August 2016, each of the named executive officers, except
Mr. Perham, tendered their eligible options and received new options at a rate of 1 replacement option share for
each 1.75 option shares tendered. No other stock option awards were granted to the named executive officers in
2016.

(3) Earned as bonuses in 2016 and 2017 as indicated.
(4) Mr. Monson became our vice president of marketing in February 2012. In early 2014, he assumed, on a permanent

basis, additional responsibilities for our sales and business development activities and became our vice president
of marketing and sales. Mr. Monson earned the amounts listed for him in the non-equity incentive plan
compensation column for performance pursuant to a sales incentive plan.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table sets forth information regarding the outstanding equity awards held by our named executive
officers as of December 31, 2017.

Option Awards Stock Awards

Name

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#) Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#) Unexercisable

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options
(#)

Option
Exercise
Price($)

Option
Expiration
Date(1)

Number of
Units That
Have Not
Vested
(#)

Market
Value of
Units That
Have Not
Vested
($)

James
Sullivan — — — — — 600 (2) 666 (3)

4,375 (4) 1,625 — 20.50 3/30/25 — —
— — — — — 6,666 (5) 7,399 (3)
7,015 (6) 8,770 — 7.20 8/23/26 — —
— — — — — 35,000 (7) 38,850 (3)

John
Monson — — — — — 400 (2) 444 (3)

4,375 (4) 1,625 — 20.50 3/30/25 — —
— — — — — 4,000 (5) 4,440 (3)
5,711 (6) 7,140 — 7.20 8/23/26 — —
— — — — — 35,000 (7) 38,850 (3)

(1) The standard option term is generally six to ten years, but all of the options expire automatically unless exercised
within 90 days after the cessation of service as an employee, director or consultant of ours.

(2) The shares subject to each restricted stock unit grant vest annually over a four-year period commencing on
February 18, 2014 subject to continued employment (or service as a director or consultant).

(3) The amount is calculated using the Company’s closing price of $1.11 per share of common stock on December 31,
2017.

(4) The stock option was granted on March 30, 2015, and the shares subject to this option vest monthly over 48
months subject to continued employment (or service as a director or consultant).

(5) The shares subject to each restricted stock unit grant vest annually over a three-year period commencing on March
1, 2017 subject to continued employment (or service as a director or consultant).

(6) As discussed above under Stock Option Exchange, officers tendered their eligible options and received new
options at a rate of 1 replacement option share for each 1.75 option shares tendered. Upon expiration of the stock
option exchange, the stock option was granted on August 23, 2016, and the shares subject to this option vest
monthly over 48 months subject to continued employment (or service as a director or consultant).

(7)
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The shares subject to each restricted stock unit grant vest in three equal installments on January 31, 2018, July 31,
2018 and January 3, 2019 subject to continued employment (or service as a director or consultant).

Compensation Philosophy and Risk Management

48

Edgar Filing: MALLESCH EILEEN A - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 17



Table of Contents

In general, our executive compensation policies are designed to recruit, retain and motivate qualified executives by
providing them with a competitive total compensation package based in large part on the executive’s contribution to
our financial and operational success, the executive’s personal performance and increases in stockholder value as
measured by the price of our common stock. We believe that the total compensation paid to our executives should be
fair, reasonable and competitive.

The chief executive officer (CEO) makes recommendations based on guidelines for equity and non-equity
compensation for executives that have been approved by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation
Committee reviews these guidelines annually. The CEO annually reviews the performance of our executives (other
than himself) and presents his recommendations for proposed salary adjustments, bonuses and equity awards to the
Compensation Committee once a year. In its discretion, the Compensation Committee may accept, modify or reject
the CEO’s recommendations. The Compensation Committee evaluates the compensation of the CEO on its own
without the participation or involvement of the CEO.  Only the Compensation Committee and the board of directors
are authorized to approve the compensation for any named executive officer. Compensation of new executives is
based on hiring negotiations between the individuals and our CEO and/or Compensation Committee.

Elements of Compensation

Consistent with our compensation philosophy and objectives, we offer executive compensation packages consisting of
the following three components:

· base salary;
· annual incentive compensation; and
· equity awards.
In each fiscal year, the Compensation Committee determines the amount and relative weighting of each component
for all executives, including the named executive officers. Base salaries are paid in fixed amounts and thus do not
encourage risk taking. Our widespread use of long-term compensation consisting of stock options and restricted stock
units (RSUs) focuses recipients on the achievement of our longer-term goals and conserves cash for other operating
expenses. The Compensation Committee does not believe that these awards encourage unnecessary or excessive risk
taking because the ultimate value of the awards is tied to our stock price, and the use of multi-year vesting schedules
helps to align our employees’ interests even more closely with those of our long-term investors.

Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements and Agreements

In 2016, our Compensation Committee adopted our Executive Change-in-Control and Severance Policy (the “Policy”).
The benefits provided by the Policy are intended to encourage the continued dedication of our executive officers and
to mitigate potential disincentives to the consideration of a transaction that would result in a change in control,
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particularly where the services of our named executive officers may not be required by a potential acquirer. The
Policy provides for benefits for our named executive officers in the event of a “Change-in-Control,” which is generally
defined as:

· an acquisition of 45% or more of our common stock or voting securities by any “person” as defined under the
Exchange Act; or
· consummation of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or a merger, consolidation,

reorganization or sale of all or substantially all of our assets (collectively, a “Business Combination”) other
than a Business Combination in which (A) our stockholders receive 50% or more of the stock of the
corporation resulting from the Business Combination and (B) at least a majority of the board of directors
of such resulting corporation were our incumbent directors immediately prior to the consummation of the
Business Combination, and (C) after which no individual, entity or group (excluding any corporation or
other entity resulting from the Business Combination or any employee benefit plan of such corporation
or of ours)
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who did not own 45% or more of the stock of the resulting corporation or other entity immediately before the
Business Combination owns 45% or more of the stock of such resulting corporation or other entity.

Under the Policy, the following compensation and benefits are to be provided to our chief executive officer upon the
occurrence of a Change-in-Control, and in the case of our other named executive officers, upon a Change-in-Control
combined with a termination of the named executive officer’s employment without cause, or due to disability or
resignation for good reason (as defined in the Policy) in connection with the Change-in-Control or within 24 months
after it:

· any base salary earned but not yet paid through the date of termination;
· any annual or discretionary bonus earned but not yet paid to him for any calendar year prior to the year in which his
termination occurs;

· any compensation under any deferred compensation plan of ours or deferred compensation agreement with us then
in effect;

· any other compensation or benefits, including without limitation any benefits under long-term incentive
compensation plans, any benefits under equity grants and awards and employee benefits under plans that have vested
through the date of termination or to which he may then be entitled in accordance with the applicable terms of each
grant, award or plan;

· reimbursement of any business expenses incurred by him through the date of termination but not yet paid;
· reimbursement of the cost of continuation of medical benefits for a period of 12

months; and
· acceleration of vesting of then-outstanding stock options and RSUs which are subject solely to time-based vesting.
Under the Policy, “cause” means the executive’s:

· willful failure to attend to the executive’s duties that is not cured by the executive within 30 days of receiving written
notice from the CEO (or, in the case of the CEO, from the board of directors) specifying such failure;

· material breach of the executive’s then-current employment agreement (if any) that is not cured by the executive
within 30 days of receiving written notice from the CEO (or, in the case of the CEO, from the board of directors)
specifying such breach;

· conviction of (or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to) any felony or any misdemeanor involving theft or
embezzlement; or

· misconduct resulting in material harm to our business or reputation, including fraud, embezzlement,
misappropriation of funds or a material violation of the executive’s Employment, Confidential Information, Invention
Assignment and Arbitration Agreement;  and

Under the Policy, “good reason” means the occurrence of any of the following conditions without the executive’s
consent, but only if such condition is reported by the executive within 90 days of the executive’s knowledge of such
condition and remains uncured 30 days after written notice from the executive to the board of directors of said
condition:

· a material reduction in the executive’s then-current base salary or annual target bonus (expressed as a percentage of
Executive’s then-current base salary), except for a reduction proportionate to reductions concurrently imposed on all
other members of the Company’s executive management;
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· a material reduction in the executive’s then-current employee benefits package, taken as a whole, except for a
reduction proportionate to reductions concurrently imposed on all other members of executive management;

· a material reduction in the executive’s responsibilities with respect to our overall operations, such that continuity of
responsibilities with respect to business operations existing prior to a corporate transaction will serve as a material
reduction in responsibilities if such business operations represent only a subsidiary or business unit of the larger
enterprise after the corporate transaction;

· a material reduction in the responsibilities of the executive’s direct reports, including a requirement for the chief
executive officer to report to another officer as opposed to our board of directors or a requirement for any other
executive to report to any officer other than our chief executive officer;

· a material breach by us of any material provision of the executive’s then-current employment agreement (if any);
· a requirement that the executive relocate to a location more than 35 miles from the executive’s then-current office
location, unless such office relocation results in the distance between the new office and Executive’s home being
closer or equal to the distance between the prior office and the executive’s home;

· a failure of a successor or transferee to assume our obligations under this Policy; or
· a failure to nominate the executive for election as a Board director, if, at the proper time for nomination, the
executive is a member of the board of directors

Employment Agreements

In addition to the agreements containing the Change-in-Control provisions summarized above, we have entered into
our standard form of employment, confidential information, invention assignment and arbitration agreement with each
of the named executive officers.

We also have entered into agreements to indemnify our current and former directors and certain executive officers, in
addition to the indemnification provided for in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws. These agreements, among
other things, provide for indemnification of our directors and certain executive officers for many expenses, including
attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by any such person in any action or proceeding,
including any action by or in the right of the Company, arising out of such person’s services as a director or executive
officer of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any other company or enterprise to which the person
provided services at our request.

Director Compensation

The following table summarizes the compensation we paid to our non-employee directors in 2017:

Name
Option
Awards ($)(1)(2) Total ($)
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Daniel Lewis 7,080 7,080
Daniel O’Neal 7,080 7,080
Stephen L. Domenik — —

(1) Option award amounts reflect the aggregate grant date fair value with respect to stock options granted to the
non-employee directors, as determined pursuant to FASB ASC Topic 718.  The assumptions used to calculate the
aggregate grant date fair value of option awards are set forth in the notes to the audited consolidated financial
statements included in the F pages of this report. These amounts do not reflect actual compensation earned or to be
earned by our non-employee directors. Option award amounts consist of: options granted to Messrs. Lewis and
O’Neil on October 19, 2017 to purchase 80,000 shares each.
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(2) As of December 31, 2017, our non-employee directors held outstanding options to purchase the following number
of shares of our common stock: Daniel Lewis, 80,000; Daniel O’Neil, 80,000.

Our Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Equity Plan”) permits the board of directors to establish by
resolution the number of shares, up to a maximum of 40,000 each year for each non-employee director, to be covered
by annual option grants or other awards for each year of service on our board. The awards are to be granted at the first
regular meeting of the board of directors following the date of each annual meeting of stockholders and vest in full on
the first anniversary of the grant date, subject to continuous service during the period. The Equity Plan also provides
that each non-employee director shall be granted an award to acquire up to 120,000 shares upon his or her initial
appointment or election to our board of directors, vesting over a four-year period at the rate of one fourth of the total
number of shares each year, subject to the non-employee director’s continuous service on the board, with the exercise
price of the award equal to 100% of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date that he becomes a
director. The Equity Plan also provides that each non-employee director shall be granted an award to purchase up to
20,000 shares for his or her role as chairperson of the Compensation and Audit Committees. The Equity Plan also
permits a disinterested majority of the board of directors, in its discretion, to authorize additional shares to be awarded
or granted under stock options to committee chairs and other non-employee directors for extraordinary service on the
board. The board of directors did not exercise this discretion in 2016. The exercise price per share under each option
grant is equal to the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date of grant on the principal trading
market for our common stock at the time of grant, which is the NASDAQ Capital Market, or the Nasdaq CM. In the
event of a merger, sale of substantially all of our assets or similar transaction, vesting of all director options would
accelerate as to 100% of the unvested shares subject to the award. All awards to directors have a term of not longer
than six years.

In 2017, members of our board of directors did not receive any cash compensation for their service as directors. On
October 19, 2017, we granted options to purchase 100,000 shares to each of Messrs. Lewis and O’Neil in connection
with their initial appointment to our board of directors in September 2017. As we did not have adequate shares
available under the Equity Plan for the awards, each of Messrs. Lewis and O’Neil received a grant of 80,000 at an
exercise price of $0.75 per share. These options vest in three annual installments the first anniversary of the date of
grant. Options for the remaining 20,000 shares were granted in January 2018.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2017 concerning the ownership of our common
stock by:

· each stockholder known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common
stock (currently our only class of voting securities);

· each of our directors;
· each of the named executive officers; and
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· all directors and executive officers as a group.
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, and includes all shares over
which the beneficial owner exercises voting or investment power. Shares that are issuable upon the exercise of
options, warrants and other rights to acquire common stock that are presently exercisable or exercisable within
60 days of December 31, 2017 are reflected in a separate column in the table below. These shares are taken into
account in the calculation of the total number of shares beneficially owned by a particular holder and the total number
of shares outstanding for the purpose of calculating percentage ownership of the particular holder. We have relied on
information supplied by our officers, directors and certain stockholders and on information contained in filings with
the SEC. Except as otherwise indicated, and subject to community property laws where applicable, we believe, based
on information provided by these persons, that the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power
with respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them. The percentage of beneficial
ownership is based on 
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8,067,635 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2017. Unless otherwise stated, the business
address of each of our directors and named executive officers listed in the table is 2309 Bering Drive, San Jose,
California 95131.

Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Number of Shares
Beneficially Owned
(Excluding Outstanding
Options)(1)

Number of Shares
Issuable on
Exercise of
Outstanding
Options or Convertible
Securities(2)

Percent of
Class

Ingalls & Snyder LLC 563,300 (3) 563,300 (4) 7.0
1325 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10019

Directors and Officers:
Leonard Perham 175,364 — 2.2
Daniel Lewis
Daniel O’Neal
Stephen L. Domenik — — *
James Sullivan 3,738 12,644 *
John Monson 1,991 11,176 *
All current directors and executive officers as
a group (6 persons) 182,583 23,820 2.6

*     Represents holdings of less than one percent.

(1) Excludes shares subject to outstanding options, warrants, convertible securities or other rights to acquire common
stock that are exercisable within 60 days of December 31, 2017.

(2) Represents the number of shares subject to outstanding options, warrants, convertible securities or other rights to
acquire common stock that are exercisable within 60 days of December 31, 2017.

(3) In a Form 13F filed with the SEC on October 20, 2017, Ingalls & Snyder LLC (Ingalls) reported that it had shared
dispositive power over all shares, but no voting authority with respect to any such shares. These shares include
securities owned by clients of Ingalls, a registered broker dealer and a registered investment advisor, in accounts
managed under investment advisory contracts.

(4) The beneficial ownership of Ingalls includes shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of $5,209,700 par
amount of our 10% senior secured convertible notes due August 15, 2018, which are held by Ingalls & Snyder
Value Partners, an investment partnership managed under an investment advisory contract with Ingalls, and for
which Ingalls & Snyder Value Partners would have voting and dispositive power if such shares were
converted.  The individual at Ingalls with dispositive power or voting power with respect to the shares included in
the table is Thomas O. Boucher, Managing Director.

Transactions with Related Persons

Edgar Filing: MALLESCH EILEEN A - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 26



As previously reported on a Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 14, 2016, we entered into a 10% Senior Secured
Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the Purchase Agreement) with Ingalls with respect to $8,000,000 principal
amount of 10% Senior Secured Convertible Notes due August 15, 2018 (the Notes), at par, in a private placement
transaction effected pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the Offering). The conversion price of the Notes is $0.90 per share and is subject to adjustment upon
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certain events, as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to a security agreement entered into by the Company,
the Notes are secured by a security interest in all of the assets of the Company.

The Notes bear interest at the annual rate of 10%. Accrued interest is payable semi-annually in cash or in kind through
the issuance of identical new Notes, or with a combination of the two, at the Company’s option. The Notes are
noncallable and nonredeemable by the Company. The Notes are redeemable at the election of the holders if the
Company experiences a fundamental change (as defined in the Notes), which generally would occur in the event (i)
any person acquires beneficial ownership of shares of common stock of the Company entitling such person to exercise
at least 40% of the total voting power of all of the shares of capital stock of the Company entitled to vote generally in
elections of directors, (ii) an acquisition of the Company by another person through a merger or consolidation, or the
sale, transfer or lease of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, or (iii) the Company’s current directors cease to
constitute a majority of the board of directors of the Company within a 12-month period, disregarding for this purpose
any director who voluntarily resigns as a director or dies while serving as a director. The redemption price is 120% of
the principal amount of the Note to be repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest as of the redemption date.

In August 2016, the first semi-annual interest payment was made in-kind with the issue of an additional note (Interest
Note) to Ingalls. The Interest Note has a principal amount of approximately $336,000 and has terms identical to the
Notes. In February 2017, we made an additional payment of interest on the notes and the interest note for the period
from August 2016 to February 15, 2017 in-kind with the issue of an additional note to Ingalls (Interest Note 2).
Interest Note 2 has a principal amount of approximately $420,000 and has terms identical to the Notes and the Interest
Note. In August 2017, we made an additional payment of interest on the notes, the interest note and Interest Note 2 for
the period from February 2017 to August 15, 2017 in-kind with the issue of an additional note to Ingalls (Interest Note
3). Interest Note 3 has a principal amount of approximately $434,000 and has terms identical to the Notes, the Interest
Note and Interest Note 2.

A related party to one of the Company's executive officers performed construction work at the Company’s new
corporate headquarters in the fourth quarter of 2017. The construction work was completed at a cost of approximately
$195,000 and was paid in full in the fourth quarter of 2017.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

General

The following description of our capital stock and provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws is a
summary only and not a complete description.

Our authorized capital stock consists of 120,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and
20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share

Common Stock
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As of December 31, 2017, 8,067,635 shares of our common stock were outstanding and held of record by 6
stockholders. Each holder of our common stock is entitled to—

· one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders;
· dividends as may be declared by our board of directors out of funds legally available for that purpose, subject to the
rights of any preferred stock that may be outstanding; and

· his, her or its pro rata share in any distribution of our assets after payment or providing for the payment of liabilities
and the liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred stock in the event of liquidation.

Holders of common stock have no cumulative voting rights, redemption rights or preemptive rights to purchase or
subscribe for any shares of our common stock or other securities. All of the outstanding shares of common stock are
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fully paid and nonassessable. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock are subject to,
and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of shares of any series of preferred stock that we may
designate and issue in the future.

Preferred Stock

We have designated 120,000 shares of our preferred stock as Series AA preferred stock for issuance pursuant to the
exercise of rights under our rights plan, none of which are outstanding. For more information on the rights plan, see
the discussion below. We have no current intention to issue any other shares of preferred stock.

Our board of directors has the authority, subject to any limitations prescribed by Delaware law, to issue shares of
preferred stock in one or more series and to fix and determine the relative rights and preferences of the shares
constituting any series to be established, without any further vote or action by the stockholders. Any shares of our
preferred stock so issued may have priority over our common stock with respect to dividend, liquidation and other
rights.

Our board of directors may authorize the issuance of our preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could
adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of our common stock. Although the issuance of our
preferred stock could provide us with flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes,
under some circumstances, it could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control.

Antitakeover Effects of Provisions of Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws and of Delaware Law.

Certain provisions of our charter documents and Delaware law could have an anti-takeover effect and could delay,
discourage or prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt that a stockholder might consider to be in its best interests,
including attempts that might otherwise result in a premium being paid over the market price of our common stock.

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws.  

Our certificate of incorporation provides that stockholders can take action only at a duly called annual or special
meeting of the stockholders and not by written consent. At the same time, our bylaws provide that special meetings of
stockholders may be called only by our chairman of the board, our chief executive officer, a majority of the total
number of authorized directors or any individual holder of 25% of the outstanding shares of common stock. These
provisions could delay consideration of a stockholder proposal until the next annual meeting. Our bylaws provide for
an advance notice procedure for the nomination, other than by or at the direction of our board of directors, of
candidates for election as directors, as well as for other stockholder proposals to be considered at annual meetings of
stockholders. In addition, under our bylaws newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of
directors or any vacancies in the board resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from
office or other cause during a director’s term in office can be filled by the vote of the remaining directors in office, and
the board is expressly authorized to amend the bylaws without stockholder consent. These provisions may preclude a
third party from removing incumbent directors and can control of our board of directors. Accordingly, these
provisions could discourage a third party from initiating a proxy contest, making a tender offer or otherwise
attempting to gain control of our company.

Delaware Takeover Statute.  

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or DGCL, generally prohibits a publicly-held Delaware
corporation from engaging in an acquisition, asset sale or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to any
person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years did own, 15.0% or more of a
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corporation’s voting stock. The prohibition continues for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in
which the person becomes an owner of 15.0% or more of the corporation’s voting stock, unless the business
combination is approved in a prescribed manner. The statute could prohibit, delay, defer or prevent a change in control
with respect to our company.
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Antitakeover Effects of Our Rights Plan

On November 10, 2010, we executed a rights agreement in connection with the declaration by our board of directors
of a dividend of one preferred stock purchase right to be paid on November 10, 2010, referred to as the "record date,"
for each share of our common stock issued and outstanding at the close of business on the record date. Each right
entitles the registered holder to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of our Series AA Preferred Stock, $0.01 par
value per share, at a price of $48.00 per one one-thousandth of a share of such Series AA Preferred Stock, subject to
adjustment, including as a result of our one-for-ten reverse stock split in February 2017 (which adjustment is not
reflected here). Generally, the rights will not be exercisable until a third party acquires 15% of our common stock or
commences or announces its intent to commence a tender offer for at least 15% of our common stock, other than
holders of "grandfathered stock" as defined in the rights agreement.

Under the rights agreement, the firm of Ingalls & Snyder, or I&S, and its managed account beneficial owners
collectively will not trigger the rights as long as none of their shares are held for the purpose of acquiring control or
effecting change or influence in control of us. This exclusion applies only to shares of common stock for which there
is only shared dispositive power and I&S has only non-discretionary voting power.

The rights agreement could delay, deter or prevent an investor from acquiring us in a transaction that could otherwise
result in our stockholders receiving a premium over the market price for their shares of common stock. The above
discussion of the rights agreement is not complete, and we urge you to read the entire rights agreement and our
certificate of incorporation, as amended, to see all of the terms and conditions applicable to the Series AA Preferred
Stock and the rights to acquire shares of such stock. (See item (n) under “Information Incorporated by Reference.”

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

NASDAQ Capital Market Listing

Our common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “MOSY.”

SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

This prospectus covers an aggregate of up to 662,500 shares of our common stock that may be sold or otherwise
disposed of by the selling stockholders. Such shares are issuable to the selling stockholders upon the exercise of the
common stock purchase warrants we issued to the selling stockholders in a private placement transaction.

The following table sets forth information about each selling stockholder, including (i) the shares of our common
stock beneficially owned by the selling stockholder prior to this offering, (ii) the number of shares being offered by
the selling stockholder pursuant to this prospectus and (iii) the selling stockholder’s beneficial ownership after
completion of this offering, assuming that all of the shares covered hereby (but none of the other shares, if any, held
by the selling stockholders) are sold. The registration of the shares of common stock issuable to the selling
stockholders upon the exercise of the warrants does not necessarily mean that the selling stockholders will sell all or
any of such shares. The selling stockholders may sell or otherwise dispose of all, a portion or none of such shares from
time to time. We do not know the number of shares, if any, that will be offered for sale or other disposition by any of
the selling stockholders under this prospectus. Furthermore, the selling stockholders may have sold, transferred or
disposed of the shares of common stock covered hereby in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of
the Securities Act since the date on which we filed this prospectus.
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The table is based on information supplied to us by the selling stockholders, with beneficial ownership and percentage
ownership determined in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC and includes voting or investment
power with respect to shares of stock. This information does not necessarily indicate beneficial ownership for any
other purpose. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a selling stockholder and the percentage
ownership of that selling stockholder, shares of common stock subject to warrants held by that selling stockholder that
are
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exercisable as of December 31, 2017, or exercisable within 60 days after December 31, 2017, are deemed outstanding.
Such shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any
other person. The percentage of beneficial ownership after this offering is based on 8,067,635 shares outstanding on
December 31, 2017.

To our knowledge and except as noted below, none of the selling stockholders has, or within the past three years has
had, any position, office or other material relationship with us or any of our predecessors or affiliates.

Beneficial
Ownership
Before This
Offering

Shares
Underlying
Warrants

Beneficial Ownership After This
Offering

Selling Stockholder (1)
Number of
Shares Owned

Offered
Hereby (8)

Number of
Shares Owned

Percentage of
Outstanding Shares

Hudson Bay Master Fund Ltd 147,500 147,500 — * 
Intracoastal Capital, LLC (2) 147,500 147,500 — * 
CVI Investments, Inc. (3) 147,500 147,500 — * 
Herald Investment Trust PLC (4) 389,500 72,500 317,000 3.93 %
Empery Asset Master, LTD (5) 68,105 68,105 — *
Empery Tax Efficient, LP (6) 31,795 31,795 — *
Empery Tax Efficient II, LP (7) 47,600 47,600 — *

*     Represents holdings of less than one percent.

(1) This table and the information in the notes below are based upon information supplied by the selling stockholders,
including reports and amendments thereto filed with the SEC on Schedule 13G.

(2) Mitchell P. Kopin and Daniel B. Asher, each of whom are managers of Intracoastal Capital LLC, or Intracoastal,
have shared voting control and investment discretion over the securities reported herein that are held by
Intracoastal. As a result, each of Mr. Kopin and Mr. Asher may be deemed to have beneficial ownership (as
determined under Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of the securities reported
herein that are held by Intracoastal.

(3) Heights Capital Management, Inc., the authorized agent of CVI Investments, Inc., or CVI, has discretionary
authority to vote and dispose of the shares held by CVI and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of these
shares. Martin Kobinger, in his capacity as investment manager of Heights Capital Management, Inc., may also be
deemed to have investment discretion and voting power over the shares held by CVI. Mr. Kobinger disclaims any
such beneficial ownership of the shares.

(4) In a Form 13F filed with the SEC on November 13, 2017, Herald Investment Management Ltd reported that it had
sole dispositive power and voting authority with respect to all shares. The individual with dispositive power or
voting power with respect to the shares included in the table is Adrian Butterworth.

(5)
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Empery Asset Management LP, the authorized agent of Empery Asset Master Ltd, or EAM, has discretionary
authority to vote and dispose of the shares held by EAM and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of these
shares. Martin Hoe and Ryan Lane, in their capacity as investment managers of Empery Asset Management LP,
may also be deemed to have investment discretion and voting power over the shares held by EAM. EAM, Mr. Hoe
and Mr. Lane each disclaim any beneficial ownership of these shares.

(6) Empery Asset Management LP, the authorized agent of Empery Tax Efficient, LP, or ETE, has discretionary
authority to vote and dispose of the shares held by ETE and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of these
shares. Martin Hoe and Ryan Lane, in their capacity as investment managers of Empery Asset Management LP,
may also be deemed to have investment discretion and voting power over the shares held by ETE. ETE, Mr. Hoe
and Mr. Lane each disclaim any beneficial ownership of these shares.
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(7) Empery Asset Management LP, the authorized agent of Empery Tax Efficient II, LP or ETE II, has discretionary
authority to vote and dispose of the shares held by ETE II and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of these
shares. Martin Hoe and Ryan Lane, in their capacity as investment managers of Empery Asset Management LP,
may also be deemed to have investment discretion and voting power over the shares held by ETE II. ETE II,
Mr. Hoe and Mr. Lane each disclaim any beneficial ownership of these shares

(8) The actual number of shares of common stock offered hereby and included in the registration statement of which
this prospectus forms a part includes, in accordance with Rule 416 under the Securities Act, such indeterminate
number of additional shares of our common stock as may become issuable in connection with any proportionate
adjustment for any stock splits, stock combinations, stock dividends, recapitalizations or similar events with
respect to common stock.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The selling stockholders, including their transferees, donees, pledgees, assignees and successors-in-interest, may sell,
transfer or otherwise dispose of any or all of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus from time to time
on The NASDAQ Capital Market or any other stock exchange, market or trading facility on which the shares are
traded or in private transactions. These dispositions may be at fixed prices, at market prices prevailing at the time of
sale, at prices related to prevailing market price or at negotiated prices. The selling stockholders may use any one or
more of the following methods when selling shares:

· ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;
· block trades in which the broker-dealer will attempt to sell the shares as agent but may position and resell a portion
of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;

· purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the broker-dealer for its account;
· an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable

exchange;
· privately negotiated transactions;
· broker-dealers may agree with the selling shareholder to sell a specified number of such shares at a stipulated price
per share;

· a combination of any such methods of sale;
· through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options exchange or
otherwise; or

· any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.
The selling stockholders may also sell shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act, if available, rather than under
this prospectus.

Broker-dealers engaged by the selling stockholders may arrange for other brokers-dealers to participate in sales.
Broker-dealers may receive commissions or discounts from the selling stockholders or, if any broker-dealer acts as
agent for the purchaser of shares, from the purchaser in amounts to be negotiated. The selling stockholders do not
expect these commissions and discounts relating to their sales of shares to exceed what is customary in the types of
transactions involved.  A manager of Intracoastal, one of the selling stockholders, is also a control person of a
broker-dealer. As a result of such common control, Intracoastal may be deemed to be an affiliate of a broker-dealer.
Intracoastal acquired its warrants in the ordinary course of business, and will acquire the shares issuable on exercise of
those warrants in the ordinary course
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of business.  As of the date of this prospectus Intracoastal did not have any arrangements or understandings with any
person to distribute such securities.

The selling stockholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions, which
may in turn engage in short sales of the common stock in the course of hedging the positions they assume. The selling
stockholders may also sell shares of our common stock short and deliver these securities to close out its short
positions, or loan or pledge the common stock to broker-dealers that in turn may sell these securities. The selling
stockholders may also enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions or the
creation of one or more derivative securities which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other financial
institution of shares offered by this prospectus, which shares such broker-dealer or other financial institution may
resell pursuant to this prospectus, as supplemented or amended to reflect such transaction..

The selling stockholders and any broker-dealers or agents that are involved in selling the shares may be deemed to be
“underwriters” within the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with such sales. In such event, any commissions
received by such broker-dealers or agents and any profit on the resale of the shares purchased by them may be deemed
to be underwriting commissions or discounts under the Securities Act. Each selling stockholder has informed us that it
does not have any agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute the common stock.

Because the selling stockholders may be deemed to be an “underwriter” within the meaning of the Securities Act, it will
be subject to the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act. In addition, any securities covered by this
prospectus which qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act may be sold under Rule 144 rather
than under this prospectus. The selling stockholders have advised us that there is no underwriter or coordinating
broker acting in connection with the proposed sale of the resale securities by the selling stockholders.

The shares will be sold only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers if required under applicable state
securities laws. In addition, in certain states, the shares may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified
for sale in the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification requirement is available and is
complied with.

Under applicable rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, any person engaged in the distribution of the resale
shares may not simultaneously engage in market making activities with respect to our common stock for the
applicable restricted period, as defined in Regulation M, prior to the commencement of the distribution. In addition,
the selling stockholders will be subject to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations
thereunder, including Regulation M, which may limit the timing of purchases and sales of shares of our common stock
by the selling stockholders or any other person.

We have agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to keep the registration statement continuously effective at all
times until (a) the warrant shares are sold under such registration statement or pursuant to Rule 144 under the
Securities Act, (b) the warrant shares may be sold without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions pursuant to Rule 144
under the Securities Act, and (c) the five-year anniversary of the date of the issuance of the warrants, whichever is the
earliest to occur. The shares will be sold only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers if required under
applicable state securities laws. In addition, in certain states, the shares may not be sold unless they have been
registered or qualified for sale in the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification
requirement is available and is complied with.

We are required to pay certain fees and expenses in connection with the registration of the shares of common stock
issuable upon exercise of the warrant. We have agreed to indemnify the selling stockholders against certain losses,
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the issuance of shares of any securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Pillsbury
Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP, Palo Alto, California.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of MoSys, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2016, have been included in this prospectus in reliance on the report
(which contains an explanatory paragraph relating to MoSys’ ability to continue as a going concern as described in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements) of BPM LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given
on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and special reports and other information with the SEC which you can read on our website is
www.mosys.com. The information available on or through our website is not part of or incorporated by reference into,
this prospectus and should not be relied upon. You may read and obtain copies at prescribed rates of any document
that we file with the SEC at its Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the
SEC at 1‑800‑SEC‑0330 for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room. Our SEC filings are
also available to you free of charge at the SEC’s web site at http://www.sec.gov, which contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S‑1 that we filed with the SEC, of which this prospectus is a
part, under the Securities Act, with respect to the shares of common stock offered hereby. This prospectus omits some
information contained in the registration statement in accordance with SEC rules and regulations. You should review
the information and exhibits in the registration statement for further information about us and the securities being
offered hereby. Statements in this prospectus concerning any document we filed as an exhibit to the registration
statement or that we otherwise filed with the SEC are not intended to be comprehensive and are qualified by reference
to the filings. You should review the complete document to evaluate these statements.

INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

We expect to incorporate by reference any future filings, other than current reports furnished under Item 2.02 or
Item 7.01 of Form 8‑K and exhibits filed on such form that are related to such items, made with the SEC pursuant to
Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act filed after the effective date of the registration statement, of
which this prospectus is a part, in each case, other than those documents or the portions of those documents deemed to
be furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules, until the termination of the offering of the securities under
the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. Information in such future filings updates and
supplements the information provided in this prospectus.

We will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owners, to whom this prospectus is delivered,
upon his or her written or oral request, a copy of any or all reports or documents referred to above which have been or
may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus but not delivered with this prospectus, excluding exhibits to
those reports or documents unless they are specifically incorporated by reference into those documents. You may
request a copy of these documents by writing or telephoning us at the following address.
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San Jose, CA 95131

(408) 418‑7500

Attention: Chief Financial Officer
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In addition, you may obtain a copy of these filings from the SEC as described above in the section entitled “Where You
Can Find More Information.”
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

of MoSys, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MoSys, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as
of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of MoSys, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concern.  As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has incurred recurring
net losses and negative cash flows.  These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going
concern.  Management’s plans regarding those matters also are described in Note 1.  The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ BPM LLP

San Jose, California

March 30, 2017
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except par value data)

December 31, 
2016 2015

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,766 $ 5,640
Short-term investments 1,002 14,598
Accounts receivable, net 559 729
Inventories 1,451 1,597
Prepaid expenses and other 473 701
Total current assets 12,251 23,265

Property and equipment, net 1,274 1,630
Goodwill 13,276 23,134
Intangible assets, net 223 334
Other 121 329
Total assets $ 27,145 $ 48,692

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 561 $ 940
Accrued expenses and other 2,773 2,664
Total current liabilities 3,334 3,604

Long-term liabilities 233 247
Convertible notes payable 8,250  —
Total liabilities 11,817 3,851

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)

Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000 shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding  —  —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 120,000 shares authorized; 6,630 shares and
6,549 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

 7  7
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Additional paid-in capital 229,341 226,822
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  — (16)
Accumulated deficit (214,020) (181,972)
Total stockholders’ equity 15,328 44,841
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 27,145 $ 48,692

Note: Share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the impact of a 1-for-10 reverse stock split effected
February 16, 2017, as discussed in Note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31, 

2016 2015 2014
Net revenue
Product $ 4,604 $ 2,400 $ 2,280
Royalty and other 1,420 1,990 3,100
Total net revenue 6,024 4,390 5,380

Cost of net revenue 3,075 2,474 2,318
Gross profit 2,949 1,916 3,062
Operating expenses
Research and development 18,086 27,108 29,261
Selling, general and administrative 5,693 6,299 6,519
Impairment of goodwill 9,858  —  —
Restructuring charges 676  —  —
Total operating expenses 34,313 33,407 35,780

Loss from operations (31,364) (31,491) (32,718)
Interest expense 687  —  —
Other income, net 48 94 143

Loss before income taxes (32,003) (31,397) (32,575)
Income tax provision 45 86 107
Net loss $ (32,048) $ (31,483) $ (32,682)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 16 (6) (23)
Comprehensive loss $ (32,032) $ (31,489) $ (32,705)
Net loss per share
Basic and diluted $ (4.86) $ (5.04) $ (6.60)
Shares used in computing net loss per share
Basic and diluted 6,601 6,249 4,952

Note: Share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the impact of a 1-for-10 reverse stock split effected
February 16, 2017, as discussed in Note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)

Accumulated
Additional Other

Common Stock Paid-In ComprehensiveAccumulated

Shares Amount Capital
Income
(Loss) Deficit Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 4,889 $  5 $ 193,207 $ 13 $ (117,807) $ 75,418
Issuance of common stock for
exercise of options, employee
stock purchase plan and
release of awards 90  — 2,236  —  — 2,236
Stock-based compensation  —  — 4,591  —  — 4,591
Change in unrealized gain
on available-for-sale
investments  —  —  — (23)  — (23)
Net loss (32,682) (32,682)
Balance at December 31, 2014 4,979  5 200,034 (10) (150,489) 49,540
Issuance of common stock for
exercise of options, employee
stock purchase plan and
release of awards 133  — 1,772  —  — 1,772
Issuance of common stock,
net of costs of $1,632 1,437  2 21,366  —  — 21,368
Stock-based compensation  —  — 3,650  —  — 3,650
Change in unrealized loss on
available-for-sale investments  —  —  — (6)  — (6)
Net loss (31,483) (31,483)
Balance at December 31, 2015 6,549  7 226,822 (16) (181,972) 44,841
Issuance of common stock for
exercise of options, employee
stock purchase plan and
release of awards 81  — 364  —  — 364
Stock-based compensation  —  — 2,155  —  — 2,155
Change in unrealized loss on
available-for-sale investments  —  —  — 16  — 16
Net loss  —  —  —  — (32,048) (32,048)
Balance at December 31, 2016 6,630 $  7 $ 229,341 $  — $ (214,020) $ 15,328
Note: Share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the impact of a 1-for-10 reverse stock split effected
February 16, 2017, as discussed in Note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 

2016 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (32,048) $ (31,483) $ (32,682)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 998 607 449
Stock-based compensation 2,155 3,650 4,591
Amortization of intangible assets 111 321 1,000
Impairment of goodwill 9,858  —  —
Amortization of debt issuance costs 37  —  —
Accrued interest 650  —  —
Loss on disposal of assets  4  —  —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 170 (552) (29)
Inventories 146 (716) (314)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 459 104 405
Accounts payable (419) 261 (23)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (64) 334 296
Net cash used in operating activities (17,943) (27,474) (26,307)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (646) (1,202) (596)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities 50,486 44,953 39,270
Purchases of marketable securities (36,874) (36,873) (15,859)
Net cash provided by investing activities 12,966 6,878 22,815
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of issuance costs  — 21,368  —
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 364 1,772 2,238
Proceeds from the issuance of notes payable, net of issuance costs 7,877  —  —
Payments on capital lease obligations (138) (14)  —
Net cash provided by financing activities 8,103 23,126 2,238

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,126 2,530 (1,254)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5,640 3,110 4,364
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 8,766 $ 5,640 $ 3,110
Supplemental disclosure:
Issuance of convertible notes in settlement of accrued interest $ 336 $  — $  —
Cash paid for income taxes $ 21 $ 56 $ 111
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MOSYS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

MoSys, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in California in September 1991, and reincorporated in September 2000
in Delaware. The Company’s strategy and primary business objective is to be an IP-rich fabless semiconductor
company focused on the development and sale of integrated circuit (IC) products. Prior to 2011, the Company’s
primary business activities were designing, developing, marketing and licensing high-performance semiconductor
memory and high-speed parallel and serial interface, or SerDes, intellectual property (IP) used by the semiconductor
industry and communications, networking and storage equipment manufacturers. Since 2011, the Company has
developed two IC product lines under the “Bandwidth Engine” and “LineSpeed” product names. Bandwidth Engine ICs
combine the Company’s proprietary high-density embedded memory with its high-speed 10 gigabits per second and
higher interface technology. The LineSpeed IC product line is comprised of non-memory based, high-speed SerDes
devices with gearbox or retimer functionality that convert lanes of data received on line cards or by optical modules
into different configurations and/or ensure signal integrity. Both product lines are being marketed to networking and
communications systems companies. The Company’s future success and ability to achieve and maintain profitability
depends on its success in developing a market for its ICs.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a basis that assumes that
the Company will continue as a going concern and contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of
liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business.

Liquidity

In December 2016, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standard
Update (ASU) No. 2014-15 (ASU 2014-15), Going Concern. ASU 2014-15 requires management to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.  If management
identifies conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern,
management must consider if there are plans that are probable to be implemented, and whether it is probable that the
plans will mitigate the conditions or events raising the substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern.  If the substantial doubt is not alleviated after consideration of management’s plans, the entity must include a
statement in the notes to the financial statements indicating that there is substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued including: 1) the
principal conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, 2)
management’s evaluation of the significance of those conditions or events in relation to the entity’s ability to meet its
obligations, and 3) management’s plans to attempt to mitigate the conditions or events causing the substantial doubt
about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company incurred net losses of approximately $32.0 million and $31.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively, and had an accumulated deficit of approximately $214.0 million as of December 31,
2016.  These and prior year losses have resulted in significant negative cash flows for almost a decade and have
required the Company to raise substantial amounts of additional capital during this period. To date, the Company has
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primarily financed its operations through multiple offerings of common stock to investors and affiliates, as well as
asset sale transactions. In March 2016, the Company entered into a 10% Senior Secured Convertible Note Purchase
Agreement with the purchasers of $8.0 million principal amount of 10% Senior Secured Convertible Notes due
August 15, 2018 (the Notes), at par, in a private placement transaction. The Notes bear interest at the annual rate of
10%. Accrued interest is payable semi-annually in cash or in-kind through the issuance of identical new Notes, or with
a combination of the two, at the Company’s option. As of February 15, 2017, the Company has made the interest
payments in-kind through the issuance of additional notes totaling approximately $0.8 million.  Further, the Notes
restrict the ability of the Company to incur any indebtedness for borrowed money, unless such indebtedness by its
terms is expressly subordinated to the Notes

F-7

Edgar Filing: MALLESCH EILEEN A - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 54



Table of Contents

in right of payment and to the security interest of the Note holder(s) in respect to the priority and enforcement of any
security interest in property of the Company securing such new debt; provided that the Note holder(s) security interest
and cash payment rights under the Notes shall be subordinate to a maximum of $5 million of indebtedness for a
secured accounts receivable line of credit facility under certain conditions. (See Note No. 11, Convertible Notes)

The Company expects to continue to incur operating losses for the foreseeable future as it secures customers for and
continues to invest in the commercialization of its IC products. Due to the strong commitment of the Company’s
resources to research and development and expansion of its product offerings to customers, the Company will need to
increase revenues substantially beyond levels that it has attained in the past in order to generate sustainable operating
profit and sufficient cash flows to continue doing business without raising additional capital from time to time.  As a
result of the Company’s expected operating losses and cash burn for the foreseeable future, recurring losses from
operations, and the need to repay the Notes and accrued interest in 2018, if the Company is unable to raise sufficient
capital through additional debt or equity arrangements, there will be uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to
maintain liquidity sufficient to operate its business effectively, which raises substantial doubt as to the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year from the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from this
uncertainty. There can be no assurance that such additional capital, whether in the form of debt or equity financing,
will be sufficient or available and, if available, that such capital will be offered on terms and conditions acceptable to
the Company.  The Company is exploring various alternatives, and expects to implement cost reductions to
successfully sustain the business.  If the Company is unsuccessful in these efforts, it will need to implement
significant cost reduction strategies that could affect its near- and long-term business plan. These efforts may include,
but are not limited to reducing headcount and curtailing business activities, especially around new product
development.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company’s fiscal year
ends on December 31 of each calendar year.

Reverse Stock Split

On February 16, 2017, the Company effected a one-for-10 reverse stock split of its common stock. As a result of the
reverse stock split, every ten shares of the Company’s pre-reverse split outstanding common stock was combined and
reclassified into one share of common stock. Proportionate voting rights and other rights of common stock holders
were not affected by the reverse stock split. No fractional shares were issued in connection with the reverse stock split;
stockholders who would otherwise hold a fractional share of common stock received cash in an amount equal to the
product obtained by multiplying (i) the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock on the effective date of the
reverse stock split, by (ii) the number of shares of the Company’s common stock held by the stockholder that would
otherwise have been exchanged for the fractional share interest. All stock options and restricted stock units
outstanding and common stock reserved for issuance under the Company’s equity incentive plans immediately prior to
the reverse stock split were adjusted by dividing the number of affected shares of common stock by 10 and, as
applicable, multiplying the exercise price by 10, as a result of the reverse stock split. The common stock par value was
adjusted to $0.001 in conjunction with the reverse stock split. All of the share numbers, share prices, and exercise
prices have been adjusted, on a retroactive basis to reflect this 1-for-10 reverse stock split.

Use of Estimates
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The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses recognized during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company’s foreign entities is the U.S. dollar. The financial statements of these entities
are translated into U.S. dollars and the resulting gains or losses are included in other income, net in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Such gains and losses were not material for any period presented.

Cash Equivalents and Investments

The Company has invested its excess cash in money market accounts, certificates of deposit, corporate debt,
government-sponsored enterprise bonds and municipal bonds and considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Investments with original
maturities greater than three months and remaining maturities less than one year are classified as short-term
investments. Investments with remaining maturities greater than one year are classified as long-term investments.
Management generally determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. All securities are
classified as available-for-sale. The Company’s available-for-sale short-term and long-term investments are carried at
fair value, with the unrealized holding gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss. Realized
gains and losses and declines in the value judged to be other-than-temporary are included in the other income, net line
item in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The cost of securities sold is based on the
specific identification method.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures the fair value of financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels:

Level 1—Inputs used to measure fair value are unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the
identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.

Level 2—Pricing is provided by third party sources of market information obtained through the Company’s investment
advisors, rather than models. The Company does not adjust for, or apply, any additional assumptions or estimates to
the pricing information it receives from advisors. The Company’s Level 2 securities include cash equivalents and
available-for-sale securities, which consisted primarily of certificates of deposit, corporate debt, and government
agency and municipal debt securities from issuers with high-quality credit ratings. The Company’s investment advisors
obtain pricing data from independent sources, such as Standard & Poor’s, Bloomberg and Interactive Data
Corporation, and rely on comparable pricing of other securities because the Level 2 securities are not actively traded
and have fewer observable transactions. The Company considers this the most reliable information available for the
valuation of the securities.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and reflect the use of significant
management judgment are used to measure fair value. These values are generally determined using pricing models for
which the assumptions utilize management’s estimates of market participant assumptions. The determination of fair
value for Level 3 investments and other financial instruments involves the most management judgment and
subjectivity.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts to ensure that its trade receivables balances are not
overstated due to uncollectibility. The Company performs ongoing customer credit evaluations within the context of
the industry in which it operates and generally does not require collateral from its customers. A specific allowance of
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up to 100% of the invoice value is provided for any problematic customer balances. Delinquent account balances are
written off after management has determined that the likelihood of collection is remote. The Company grants credit
only to customers deemed creditworthy in the judgment of management. There was no allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable at December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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Inventory

The Company values its inventories at the lower of cost, which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis,
or market value. The Company records inventory reserves for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventories
based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. Once a reserve is established, it is maintained
until the product to which it relates is sold or otherwise disposed of. If actual market conditions are less favorable than
those expected by management, additional adjustment to inventory valuation may be required. Charges for obsolete
and slow moving inventories are recorded based upon an analysis of specific identification of obsolete inventory items
and quantification of slow moving inventory items. The Company recorded no inventory reserves during the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2014, and inventory reserves of $0.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2015.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are originally recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years. Depreciation is recorded in operating expenses in
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Leasehold improvements and assets acquired
through capital leases are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful life or the lease term and are recorded
with depreciation expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Valuation of Long-lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets with finite lives whenever events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying value of the asset or asset group may not be recoverable.
Finite-lived intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of three to
seven years. An impairment charge is recognized as the difference between the net book value of such assets and the
fair value of such assets at the date of measurement. The measurement of impairment requires management to
estimate future cash flows and the fair value of long-lived assets.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired in business combinations, referred to as purchased intangible assets, are accounted for based
on the fair value of assets purchased and are amortized over the period in which economic benefit is estimated to be
received.

Goodwill

The Company reviews goodwill for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company first assesses qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount as
a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step impairment test. If the qualitative assessment
warrants further analysis, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value. The fair
value of the reporting unit is determined using the market approach. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the
carrying value of net assets of the reporting unit, goodwill is not impaired, and the Company is not required to
perform further testing. If the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then the
Company must record an impairment charge equal to the difference. The Company has determined that it has a single
reporting unit for purposes of performing its goodwill impairment test. As the Company uses the market approach to
assess impairment in the second step of the analysis, the price of its common stock is an important component of the
fair value calculation. If the Company’s stock price continues to experience significant price and volume fluctuations,
this will impact the fair value of the reporting unit, which can lead to potential impairment in future periods. The
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Company performed step one of the annual impairment test in September 2016, and concluded no factors indicated
impairment of goodwill.

During the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company concluded a triggering event had occurred due to a sustained decrease
in the price per share of its common stock and related reduced market capitalization. The Company performed the first
step of the impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment, and the test results indicated the goodwill
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carrying value was greater than its fair value. The Company then performed a step-two analysis to compare the
carrying amount of goodwill to the implied fair value of the goodwill, and the Company determined the estimated fair
values of the assets and liabilities of its single reporting unit. The fair values of the assets and liabilities identified in
the impairment test were determined using the combination of the income approach and the market approach. The
implied fair value of goodwill was measured as the excess of the fair value of the Company’s single reporting unit over
the fair value of its assets and liabilities. As a result of the step-two test, the Company recorded a non-cash impairment
charge of $9.9 million during the fourth quarter of 2016.

Revenue Recognition

General

The Company generates revenue from the sales of IC products and licensing of its IP. The Company recognizes
revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or performance has occurred, the sales price is
fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Evidence of an arrangement generally consists of
signed agreements or customer purchase orders.

IC products

The Company sells products both directly to customers, as well as through distributors. Revenue from sales directly to
customers is generally recognized at the time of shipment. The Company may record an estimated allowance, at the
time of shipment, for future returns and other charges against revenue consistent with the terms of sale. IC product
revenue and costs relating to sales made through distributors with rights of return or stock rotation are generally
deferred until the distributors sell the product to end customers due to the Company’s inability to estimate future
returns and credits to be issued. Distributors are generally able to return up to 10% of their purchases for slow,
non-moving or obsolete inventory for credit every six months. At the time of shipment to distributors, an accounts
receivable for the selling price is recorded, as there is a legally enforceable right to receive payment, and inventory is
relieved, as legal title to the inventory is transferred upon shipment. Revenues are recognized upon receiving
notification from the distributors that products have been sold to end customers. Distributors provide information
regarding products and quantity, end customer shipments and remaining inventory on hand. The associated deferred
margin is included in the accrued expenses and other line item in the consolidated balance sheets.

Royalty

The Company’s licensing contracts typically also provide for royalties based on the licensees’ use of the Company’s
memory technology in their currently shipping commercial products. The Company recognizes royalties in the quarter
in which it receives the licensees’ reports.

Licensing

Licensing revenue consists of fees earned from license agreements, development services and support and
maintenance. For stand-alone license agreements or license deliverables in multi-deliverable arrangements that do not
require significant development, modification or customization, revenues are recognized when all revenue recognition
criteria have been met. Delivery of the licensed technology is typically the final revenue recognition criterion met, at
which time revenue is recognized. If any of the criteria are not met, revenue recognition is deferred until such time as
all criteria have been met. Support and maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the period during which the
obligation exists, typically 12 months. Licensing revenue was zero for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
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and was $155,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Cost of Net Revenue

Cost of net revenue consists primarily of direct and indirect costs of IC product sales and engineering personnel costs
directly related to maintenance and support services specified in licensing agreements. Maintenance and support
typically includes engineering support to assist in the commencement of production of a licensee’s products.
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Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were not significant in the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014.

Research and Development

Engineering costs are recorded as research and development expense in the period incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation for awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period, usually the vesting period, based on the grant-date fair value.

The Company records stock-based compensation expense for stock options granted to non-employees, excluding
non-employee directors, based upon the estimated then-current fair value of the equity instrument using the
Black-Scholes pricing model. Assumptions used to value the equity instruments are consistent with equity instruments
issued to employees. The Company charges the value of the equity instrument to earnings over the term of the service
agreement and the unvested shares underlying the option are subject to periodic revaluation over the remaining
vesting period.

Per Share Amounts

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share gives effect to all potentially dilutive common
shares outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive common shares consist of incremental shares of common
stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options, vesting of stock awards and purchases under the employee stock
purchase plan. The following table sets forth securities outstanding which were excluded from the computation of
diluted net loss per share as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):

December 31, December 31, December 31, 
2016 2015 2014

Options outstanding to purchase common stock 522 839 822
Employee stock purchase plan 44 44 21
Unvested restricted common stock units 148 24 39
Convertible debt 926 — —
Total 1,640 907 882

Income Taxes

The Company determines deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon the differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities using tax rates in effect for the year in which the Company
expects the differences to affect taxable income. A valuation allowance is established for any deferred tax assets for
which it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
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The Company files U.S. federal and state and foreign income tax returns in jurisdictions with varying statutes of
limitations. The 2006 through 2016 tax years generally remain subject to examination by federal, state and foreign tax
authorities.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company did not have any unrecognized tax benefits nor expect its unrecognized tax
benefits to change significantly over the next 12 months. The Company recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax
benefits in its income tax expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as other income and expenses.
During

F-12

Edgar Filing: MALLESCH EILEEN A - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 64



Table of Contents

the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company did not recognize any interest or penalties related
to unrecognized tax benefits.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss includes unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities.  Realized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss and included in other income,
net in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.  All amounts recorded were not significant in
the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 (ASU 2014-09), Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which
requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised
goods and services to customers. In March, April and May 2016, the FASB issued additional updates to the new
revenue standard relating to reporting revenue on a gross versus net basis, identifying performance obligations and
licensing arrangements, and narrow-scope improvements and practical expedients, respectively. ASU 2014-09 will
replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. The accounting
standard is effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning
after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods
within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2016. ASU 2014-09 provides for one of two methods of
transition: retrospective application to each prior period presented; or recognition of the cumulative effect of
retrospective application of the new standard in the period of initial application.  The Company does not intend to
early adopt this standard and plans to use the full retrospective approach to the transition.  The Company does not
expect that the adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
However, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met, it is likely that ASU 2014-09 would require
the Company to recognize revenue and cost relating to distributor sales upon product delivery, subject to estimated
allowances for distributor price adjustments and rights of return.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02 (ASU 2016-02), Leases.  ASU 2016-02 requires lessees to
recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability equal to the present value of the lease payments for virtually all
leases not classified as short term. Consistent with current U.S. GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and
presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily depend on its classification as a
finance or operating lease. The ASU also will require disclosures to provide additional qualitative and quantitative
information about the amounts recorded in the financial statements.  ASU 2016-02 is effective for annual and interim
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted.  The new standard requires a
modified retrospective transition for application at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact that ASU 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures.
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Note 2: Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss Components

December 31, 
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Inventories:
Work-in-process $ 1,270 $ 1,478
Finished goods 181 119

$ 1,451 $ 1,597

Prepaid expenses and other:
Prepaid software $ 250 $ 287
Prepaid insurance 116 134
Interest receivable 17 48
Prepaid expenses and other 90 232

$ 473 $ 701
Property and equipment, net:
Equipment, furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements $ 5,906 $ 5,646
Acquired software 304 334

6,210 5,980
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,936) (4,350)

$ 1,274 $ 1,630

Intangible assets, net:

Identifiable intangible assets were (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2016
Gross Net

Life Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(years) Amount Amortization Amount

Patent license  7 $ 780 $ 557 $ 223

December 31, 2015
Gross Net

Life Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(years) Amount Amortization Amount

Patent license  7 $ 780 $ 446 $ 334
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Amortization expense has been included in research and development expense in the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive loss. The estimated aggregate amortization expense to be recognized in future years is
approximately $0.1 million annually for 2017 through 2018.

Accrued expenses and other:

December 31, 
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Accrued wages and employee benefits $ 1,051 $ 1,076
IC development and wafer costs 598 921
Interest payable 314  —
Professional fees and consulting 282 158
Deferred revenue 271 31
Employee stock purchase plan withholdings 200 323
Capital lease obligation  — 138
Other 57 17

$ 2,773 $ 2,664
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amounts in long-term liabilities comprised deferred rent.

Note 3: Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments outstanding were (in thousands):

December 31, 2016
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,766 $  — $  — $ 8,766
Short-term investments:
U.S. government-sponsored enterprise bonds $ 762 $  — $  — $ 762
Corporate notes 240  —  — 240
Total short-term investments $ 1,002 $  — $  — $ 1,002

December 31, 2015
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,640 $  — $  — $ 5,640
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Short-term investments:
U.S. government-sponsored enterprise bonds $ 6,243 $  — $  — $ 6,243
Municipal bonds 200  —  — 200
Corporate notes 8,171  — (16) 8,155
Total short-term investments $ 14,614 $  — $ (16) $ 14,598
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The unrealized losses from available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were not material.

The estimated fair values of available-for-sale securities with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2015 were (in
thousands):

December 31, 2015
Unrealized Fair

Cost Losses Value
Short-term investments:
Corporate notes $ 8,171 $ (16) $ 8,155
Total short-term investments $ 8,171 $ (16) $ 8,155

As of December 31, 2015, substantially all of the available-for-sale securities with unrealized losses had been in a loss
position for less than 12 months.

Cost and fair value of investments based on two maturity groups were (in thousands):

December 31, 2016
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Due within 1 year $ 1,002 $  — $  — $ 1,002

December 31, 2015
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Due within 1 year $ 14,614 $  — $ (16) $ 14,598

The following table represents the Company’s fair value hierarchy for its financial assets (cash equivalents and
investments) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

December 31, 2016
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $ 84 $ 84 $  — $ —
U.S. government-sponsored enterprise bonds 3,767 — 3,767 —
Municipal bonds 4,027  — 4,027  —
Corporate notes 480 — 480 —
Total assets $ 8,358 $ 84 $ 8,274 $  —
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December 31, 2015
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $ 2,238 $ 2,238 $ — $ —
U.S. government-sponsored enterprise bonds 7,525 — 7,525 —
Municipal bonds 200  — 200  —
Corporate notes 8,255 — 8,255 —
Certificates of deposit 240 — 240 —
Total assets $ 18,458 $ 2,238 $ 16,220 $  —

There were no transfers in or out of Level 1 and Level 2 securities during the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015.
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Note 4: Income Taxes

The income tax provision consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31, 
2016 2015 2014

Current portion:
Federal $  — $  — $  —
State  3  3  3
Foreign 42 83 104

$ 45 $ 86 $ 107
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were (in thousands):

December 31, 
2016 2015

Deferred tax assets:
Federal and state loss carryforwards $ 68,829 $ 60,831
Reserves, accruals and other 519 761
Depreciation and amortization 1,718 1,304
Deferred stock-based compensation 4,287 4,504
Research and development credit carryforwards 13,867 12,886
Foreign tax and other credits 536 1,131
Total deferred tax assets 89,756 81,417
Deferred tax liabilities:
Acquired intangible assets and other 328 1,781
Less: Valuation allowance (89,428) (79,636)
Net deferred tax assets $  — $  —

The valuation allowance increased by $9.8 million and $12.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) of approximately
$184.1 million for federal income tax purposes and approximately $116.5 million for state income tax purposes. These
losses are available to reduce future taxable income and expire at various times from 2017 through 2036.
Approximately $5.7 million of federal net operating loss carryforwards and $4.8 million of state net operating loss
carryforwards are related to excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation and would be charged to additional
paid-in capital, if realized.

The Company also had federal research and development tax credit carryforwards of approximately $8.8 million,
which will begin expiring in 2018, and California research and development credits of approximately $7.8 million,
which do not have an expiration date. The Company had remaining foreign tax credits available for federal income tax
purposes of approximately $0.3 million, which will began expiring in 2017.
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Utilization of the Company’s net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be subject to a substantial annual
limitation due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code (IRC); and similar state
provisions. Section 382 of the IRC (Section 382) imposes limitations on a corporation’s ability to utilize its NOLs, if it
experiences an “ownership change.” In general terms, an ownership change may result from transactions increasing the
ownership percentage of certain stockholders in the stock of the corporation by more than 50% over a three year
period.
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In the event of an ownership change, utilization of the NOLs would be subject to an annual limitation under
Section 382 determined by multiplying the value of the Company’s stock at the time of the ownership change by the
applicable long-term tax exempt rate. The Company has not completed a Section 382 study in recent years; however,
should a study be completed, certain NOLs may be subject to such limitations. Any future annual limitation may
result in the expiration of NOLs before utilization.

The Company considers its undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiary permanently reinvested in foreign
operations and has not provided for U.S. income taxes on such earnings. As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s
unremitted earnings from its foreign subsidiary were $1.0 million. The determination of the unrecognized deferred
U.S. income tax liability, if any, is not practicable.

A reconciliation of income taxes provided at the federal statutory rate (35%) to the actual income tax provision
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 
2016 2015 2014

Income tax benefit computed at U.S. statutory rate $ (11,229) $ (10,989) $ (11,401)
State income tax (net of federal benefit)  3  3  3
Foreign income tax at rate different from U.S. statutory rate (7) (15) (12)
Research and development credits (981) (1,580) (1,614)
Stock-based compensation 75 123 130
Amortization of intangible assets (100) (100) (100)
Goodwill impairment 1,856  —  —
Valuation allowance changes affecting tax provision 10,022 12,588 13,027
Other 406 56 74
Income tax provision $ 45 $ 86 $ 107

The domestic and foreign components of (loss) income before income tax provision were (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 
2016 2015 2014

U.S. $ (31,115) $ (31,580) $ (32,735)
Non-U.S (888) 183 160

$ (32,003) $ (31,397) $ (32,575)

Note 5: Stock-Based Compensation
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Equity Compensation Plans

Common Stock Option Plans

In 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Stock Plan, which was amended in 2004 (Amended 2000 Plan), and
terminated in 2010. As of December 31, 2016, no options were available for future issuance under the Amended 2000
Plan, as the remaining options outstanding under the Amended 2000 Plan expired in June 2016.

In June 2010, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, which was amended in 2014
(Amended 2010 Plan). The Amended 2010 Plan authorizes the board of directors or the compensation committee of
the board of directors to grant a broad range of awards including stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock,
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performance-based awards, and restricted stock units. Under the Amended 2010 Plan, 400,000 shares were initially
reserved for issuance. In June 2014, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment increasing the number of
shares reserved for issuance by 150,000 shares.  In addition, the terms of the Amended 2010 Plan provide for an
automatic annual increase in the share reserve of 50,000 on January 1 of each year. The Amended 2010 Plan has a
10 year term and provides for annual option grants or other awards to non-employee directors to acquire up to 4,000
shares and for a one-time grant of an option or other award to a non-employee director to acquire up to 12,000 shares
upon initial appointment or election to the board of directors. The term of options granted under the Amended 2010
Plan may not exceed ten years. The term of all incentive stock options granted to a person who, at the time of grant,
owns stock representing more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of the Company’s stock may not exceed five
years.

The exercise price of stock options granted under the Amended 2010 Plan must be at least equal to the fair market
value of the shares on the date of grant. Generally, options granted under the Amended 2010 Plan will vest over a
four-year period and will have a six or ten-year term. In addition, the Amended 2010 Plan provides for automatic
acceleration of vesting for options granted to non-employee directors upon a change of control of the Company.

The Amended 2000 Plan and Amended 2010 Plan are referred to collectively as the “Plans.”

The Company may also award shares to new employees outside the Plans, as material inducements to the acceptance
of employment with the Company, as permitted under the Listing Rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. These grants
must be approved by the compensation committee of the board of directors, a majority of the independent directors or,
below a specified share level, by an authorized executive officer. As of December 31, 2016, no such grants were
outstanding.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In June 2010, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). A total of
200,000 shares of common stock were initially reserved for issuance under the ESPP in 2010. On September 1, 2010,
the Company commenced the first offering period under the ESPP. In May 2015, the Company’s stockholders
approved an amendment increasing the number of shares reserved for issuance by 200,000 shares. The ESPP, which is
intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, is administered by the board of directors or the
compensation committee of the board of directors. The ESPP provides that eligible employees may purchase up to
$25,000 worth of the Company’s common stock annually over the course of two six-month offering periods. The
purchase price to be paid by participants is 85% of the price per share of the Company’s common stock either at the
beginning or the end of each six-month offering period, whichever is less.

On February 29, 2016, approximately 37,300 shares of common stock were issued at an aggregate purchase price of
$197,000 under the ESPP. On August 31, 2016, approximately 31,900 shares of common stock were issued at an
aggregate purchase price of $167,000 under the ESPP.  As of December 31, 2016, there were approximately 150,000
shares authorized and unissued under the ESPP. In February 2017, the Company’s board of directors canceled the
current purchase period under the ESPP, decided not to authorize a new purchase period and directed the Company to
refund payroll contributions made under the ESPP during the purchase period that began September 1, 2016.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

The unamortized compensation cost, net of expected forfeitures, as of December 31, 2016 was $2.6 million related to
stock options and is expected to be recognized as expense over a weighted average period of approximately 2.6 years.
The unamortized compensation cost, net of expected forfeitures, as of December 31, 2016 was $0.6 million related to
restricted stock units and is expected to be recognized as expense over a weighted average period of approximately 2.0
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years. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the fair value of options and awards vested was approximately $2.0
million.

The Company is required to present the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost
recognized from the exercise of stock options as financing cash flows in the consolidated statements of cash flows.
For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, there were no such tax benefits associated with the exercise
of stock options.
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Valuation Assumptions and Expense Information for Stock-based Compensation

The fair value of the Company’s share-based payment awards for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
was estimated on the grant dates using the Black-Scholes valuation option-pricing model with the following
assumptions:

Year Ended December 31, 
Employee stock options: 2016 2015 2014
Risk-free interest rate 1% - 2.1% 0.6% -1.7% 1.3% - 1.7%
Volatility 61.4% - 65.0% 55.7% - 59.3% 53.7% - 57.5%
Expected life (years) 3.0 - 5.0 3.0 - 5.0 4.0 - 5.0
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The risk-free interest rate was derived from the Daily Treasury Yield Curve Rates as published by the U.S.
Department of the Treasury as of the grant date for terms equal to the expected terms of the options. The expected
volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock price over the expected term of the options. The
expected term of options granted was derived from historical data based on employee exercises and post-vesting
employment termination behavior. A dividend yield of zero is applied because the Company has never paid dividends
and has no intention to pay dividends in the near future.

The stock-based compensation expense recorded is adjusted based on estimated forfeiture rates. An annualized
forfeiture rate has been used as a best estimate of future forfeitures based on the Company’s historical forfeiture
experience. The stock-based compensation expense will be adjusted in later periods if the actual forfeiture rate is
different from the estimate.
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Common Stock Options and Restricted Stock

A summary of option activity under the Plans is presented below (in thousands, except exercise price):

Options outstanding
Weighted

Shares Average
Available Number of Exercise
for Grant Shares Prices

Balance at January 1, 2014 42 672 $ 38.64
Additional shares authorized under the Amended 2010 Plan 200  — —
Restricted stock units granted (50)  — —
Options granted (17) 17 $ 35.34
Options cancelled and returned to Plan 49 (49) $ 43.08
Options exercised  — (41) $ 30.64
Options expired (48)  — $ 43.20
Balance at December 31, 2014 176 599 $ 38.73
Additional shares authorized under the Amended 2010 Plan 50  — —
Restricted stock units cancelled and returned to Plan  2  —  —
Options granted (154) 154 $ 20.22
Options cancelled and returned to Plan 70 (70) $ 35.23
Options exercised  — (8) $ 16.37
Options expired (38)  — $ 32.00
Balance at December 31, 2015 106 675 $ 35.14
Additional shares authorized under the Amended 2010 Plan 50  — —
Restricted stock units granted (144)  — —
Restricted stock units cancelled and returned to Plan  7  — —
Options granted (384) 384 $ 6.96
Options cancelled and returned to Plan 479 (479) $ 35.64
Options cancelled and expired  — (58) $ 44.80
Balance at December 31, 2016 114 522 $ 13.88

A summary of the inducement grant option activity is presented below (in thousands, except exercise price):

Options Outstanding
Weighted
Average

Number of Exercise 
Shares Prices

Balance at January 1, 2014 318 $ 44.23
Granted 41 $ 36.80
Exercised (7) $ 25.87
Expired (129) $ 55.75
Balance at December 31, 2014 223 $ 36.78
Exercised (52) $ 15.48
Expired (7) $ 31.79
Balance at December 31, 2015 164 $ 43.74
    Cancelled (164) $ 43.74
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On July 26, 2016, the Company initiated a one-time option exchange program pursuant to which employees
(excluding the chief executive officer and non-employees, including members of the Company’s board of directors)
who held certain options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock (such options, eligible options) were
given the opportunity to exchange such eligible options for a lesser number of replacement options with a lower
exercise price.  Upon the expiration of the option exchange program on August 23, 2016, the Company accepted for
cancellation exchanged options to purchase an aggregate of 456,995 shares of common stock and issued replacement
options covering 334,027 shares of common stock from the Amended 2010 Plan. The exchanged eligible options
included options to purchase 113,531 shares of the Company’s common stock, which were originally inducement
grants. The replacement options have an exercise price of $7.20 per share and vest monthly over three years.  This
one-time option exchange was treated as a modification for accounting purposes and resulted in incremental expense
of approximately $926,000, which was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The incremental
expense and the unamortized expense remaining on the exchanged options are being amortized over the three-year
vesting period of the replacement options.

A summary of restricted stock unit activity under the Plans is presented below (in thousands, except fair value):

Weighted
Average

Number of Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value

Non-vested shares at January 1, 2014  2 $ 44.60
Granted 50 $ 46.11
Vested (13) $ 45.83
Cancelled  — $ 46.20
Non-vested shares at December 31, 2014 39 $ 46.11
Vested (13) $ 45.97
Cancelled (2) $ 46.20
Non-vested shares at December 31, 2015 24 $ 46.17
Granted 144 $ 5.30
Vested (12) $ 46.06
Cancelled (8) $ 15.67
Non-vested shares at December 31, 2016 148 $ 8.13

The total intrinsic value of the restricted stock units outstanding as of December 31, 2016 was $0.3 million.
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The following table summarizes significant ranges of outstanding and exercisable options as of December 31, 2016 (in
thousands, except contractual life and exercise price):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average Aggregate

Number Life Exercise Number Exercise Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding (in Years) Price Exercisable Price value
$3.80 - $7.19 45 8.68 $ 5.12  8 $ 5.30
$7.20 - $16.99 325 9.39 $ 7.20 36 $ 7.20
$17.00 - $30.99 84 6.33 $ 22.39 66 $ 22.92
$31-00 - $54.29 58 2.72 $ 38.41 57 $ 38.32
$54.30 - $61.09  6 0.50 $ 54.30  6 $ 54.30
$61.10 - $61.10  4 0.32 $ 61.10  4 $ 61.10
$3.80 - $61.10 522 7.82 $ 13.88 177 $ 25.83 $  —
Vested and expected to vest 522 7.82 $ 14.34 $  —
Exercisable 177 5.38 $ 25.83 $  —
There were no stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2016.  The aggregate intrinsic value of
employee stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $0.3 million and
$0.8 million, respectively.

Note 6: Stockholders’ Equity

In March 2015, the Company completed a public offering and issued approximately 1,437,000 shares of its common
stock for approximately $21.4 million in net proceeds. Two of the Company’s executive officers between them
purchased a total of 40,625 shares at the public offering price.

Stockholder Rights Plan

On November 10, 2010, the Company executed a rights agreement in connection with the declaration by the
Company’s board of directors of a dividend of one preferred stock purchase right (a Right) to be paid on November 10,
2010 (the Record Date) for each share of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding at the close of business
on the Record Date. Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of Series AA
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share (a Preferred Share), of the Company at a price of $4.80 per one
one-thousandth of a Preferred Share, subject to adjustment. The rights will not be exercisable until a third party
acquires 15.0% of the Company’s common stock or commences or announces its intent to commence a tender offer for
at least 15.0% of the common stock, other than holders of “grandfathered stock” as defined below.

“Grandfathered stock” refers to stock held by Carl E. Berg and his affiliates. The beneficial ownership threshold for a
holder of grandfathered stock is 20%, rather than 15%. Under the rights agreement, certain shares beneficially owned
by the firm of Ingalls & Snyder, or I&S, and its managed account beneficial owners collectively will not count toward
the 15% beneficial ownership threshold that would trigger the rights as long as none of such shares are held for the
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purpose of acquiring control or effecting change or influence in control of the Company. Further, this exclusion
applies only to shares of common stock for which I&S possesses only shared dispositive power and non-discretionary
voting power. The rights agreement could delay, deter or prevent an investor from acquiring the Company in a
transaction that could otherwise result in its stockholders receiving a premium over the market price for their shares of
common stock.
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Note 7: Retirement Savings Plan

Effective January 1997, the Company adopted the MoSys 401(k) Plan (the Savings Plan) which qualifies as a thrift
plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Full-time and part-time employees who are at least 21 years
of age are eligible to participate in the Savings Plan at the time of hire. Participants may contribute up to 15% of their
earnings to the Savings Plan. No matching contributions were made by the Company in the years ended December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014.

Note 8: Business Segments, Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

The Company operates in one business segment and uses one measurement of profitability for its business. Revenue
attributed to the United States and to all foreign countries is based on the geographical location of the customer.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash, cash equivalents, short-term and long-term investments and accounts receivable. Cash, cash
equivalents and short-term and long term investments are deposited with high credit-quality institutions.

The Company recognized revenue from licensing of its technologies and shipment of ICs to customers in North
America, Asia and Europe as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 
2016 2015 2014

North America $ 3,816 $ 2,222 $ 1,485
Japan 1,303 667 1,961
Taiwan 804 1,396 1,894
Rest of world 101 105 40
Total net revenue $ 6,024 $ 4,390 $ 5,380

Customers who accounted for at least 10% of total net revenues were:

Years Ended
December 31, 
2016 2015 2014

Customer A 47 %  34 *
Customer B 21 %  12 %  31 %
Customer C 13 %  31 %  34 %
Customer D * * 11 %

*Represents percentage less than 10%.
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One customer accounted for 72% of net accounts receivable at December 31, 2016. Three customers accounted for
94% of net accounts receivable at December 31, 2015.

Net long-lived assets (property and equipment), classified by major geographic areas, was (in thousands):

December 31, 
2016 2015
(in thousands)

U.S. $ 1,274 $ 1,578
Non-U.S.  — 52
Total $ 1,274 $ 1,630
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Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies

Leases and Purchase Commitments

The Company leases its facilities under non-cancelable operating leases that expire at various dates through 2020.
Rent expense was approximately $783,000, $798,000 and $802,000 for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014, respectively. The leases provide for monthly payments and are being charged to operations ratably over the
lease terms. In addition to the minimum lease payments, the Company is responsible for property taxes, insurance and
certain other operating costs.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases and purchase commitments are (in thousands):

Operating Purchase
Year ended December 31, leases commitments Total
2017 $ 753 $ 760 $ 1,513
2018 781 344 1,125
2019 756  — 756
2020 514  — 514
2021  —  —  —
Total minimum payments $ 2,804 $ 1,104 $ 3,908

Purchase commitments include software licenses related to computer-aided design software payable through 2018.

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into contractual arrangements under which it may agree to
indemnify the counterparties from any losses incurred relating to breach of representations and warranties, failure to
perform certain covenants, or claims and losses arising from certain events as outlined within the particular contract,
which may include, for example, losses arising from litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such
indemnification clauses may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. The Company has entered into indemnification
agreements with its officers and directors. No material amounts were reflected in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 or 2014 related to these indemnifications.

The Company has not estimated the maximum potential amount of indemnification liability under these agreements
due to the limited history of prior claims and the unique facts and circumstances applicable to each particular
agreement. To date, the Company has not made any payments related to these indemnification agreements.

Legal Matters

The Company is not a party to any material legal proceeding that the Company believes is likely to have a material
adverse effect on its consolidated financial position or results of operations. From time to time, the Company may be
subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. These claims, even if not meritorious, could
result in the expenditure of significant financial resources and diversion of management efforts.
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Note 10: Restructuring

In the first quarter of 2016, the Company effected a reduction in its workforce and associated operating expenses, net
loss and cash burn and realigned resources, as the Company had substantially concluded development of new
products, including its third generation Bandwidth Engine IC product family, and brought these products to market in
2016. The Company reduced United States headcount by 12 positions and ceased operations at its subsidiary in
Hyderabad, India, which had 18 employees.  As a result of these reductions, the Company incurred total charges of
approximately $0.7
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million, including $0.6 million of charges for severance benefits and other one-time termination costs. The remaining
charges represent lease obligations, asset impairments and other expenses related to the Company’s Indian subsidiary.
Substantially all of these charges were realized and resulted in cash expenditures of $0.6 million in the first quarter of
2016. Expenses related to the restructure are included in the restructuring charges line on the condensed consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss and the remaining liability is included in accrued expenses and other
on the condensed consolidated balance sheet consisting of (in thousands):

Facility related
Workforce and other

reduction
termination
costs Total

Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ — $ — $  —
Restructuring charge 561 115 676
Non-cash settlements — (46) (46)
Cash payments (561) (64) (625)
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $  — $  5 $  5

Note 11: Convertible Notes

On March 14, 2016, the Company entered into a 10% Senior Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the
Purchase Agreement) with the purchasers of $8,000,000 principal amount of 10% Senior Secured Convertible Notes
due August 15, 2018 (the Notes), at par, in a private placement transaction effected pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The conversion price of the Notes is $9.00 per
share and is subject to adjustment upon certain events, as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to a security
agreement entered into by the Company, the Notes are secured by a security interest in all of the assets of the
Company.

The Notes bear interest at the annual rate of 10%. Accrued interest is payable semi-annually in cash or in kind through
the issuance of identical new Notes, or with a combination of the two, at the Company’s option. The Notes are
noncallable and nonredeemable by the Company. The Notes are redeemable at the election of the holders if the
Company experiences a fundamental change (as defined in the Notes), which generally would occur in the event (i)
any person acquires beneficial ownership of shares of common stock of the Company entitling such person to exercise
at least 40% of the total voting power of all of the shares of capital stock of the Company entitled to vote generally in
elections of directors, (ii) an acquisition of the Company by another person through a merger or consolidation, or the
sale, transfer or lease of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, or (iii) the Company’s current directors cease to
constitute a majority of the board of directors of the Company within a 12-month period, disregarding for this purpose
any director who voluntarily resigns as a director or dies while serving as a director. The redemption price is 120% of
the principal amount of the Note to be repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest as of the redemption date.
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The conversion price of $9.00 per share of common stock shall be reset, if, prior to the maturity date, the Company
sells new shares of capital stock, or other securities convertible into or exercisable for capital stock, in a financing
with one or more accredited investors that yields proceeds to the Company (net of transaction fees, expenses and
discounts and commission) of at least $1,000,000 at a price lower than the then applicable conversion price in effect
immediately before the closing of such financing; provided that in no event shall the applicable conversion price be
reset to less than $8.50 per share of common stock.  The Notes are subject to anti-dilution adjustments for stock splits,
stock dividends, and the like.

No Note holder shall be entitled to convert such holder’s Notes if effective upon the applicable conversion date (i) the
holder would have beneficial ownership of more than 9.9% of the voting capital stock of the Company as determined
in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (with exceptions specified in
the Purchase Agreement), or (ii) if the shares are being acquired or held with a purpose or effect of changing or
influencing control of the Company, or in connection with or as a participant in any transaction having that purpose or
effect, as determined in the sole discretion of the board of directors of the Company. There is no required sinking fund
for the Notes. The Notes have not been registered for resale, and the holder(s) do not have registration rights.

The Notes restrict the ability of the Company to incur any indebtedness for borrowed money, unless such
indebtedness by its terms is expressly subordinated to the Notes in right of payment and to the security interest of the
Note holder(s) in respect to the priority and enforcement of any security interest in property of the Company securing
such new
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debt; provided that the Note holder(s) security interest and cash payment rights under the Notes shall be subordinate to
a maximum of $5,000,000 of indebtedness for a secured accounts receivable line of credit facility provided to the
Company by a bank or institutional lender; and, provided further, that in no event may the amount of indebtedness to
which the  security interest of the Note holder(s) is subordinated exceed the outstanding balance of accounts
receivable less than 90 days old for which the Company has not recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts pledged
under such credit facility.

The Notes define an event of default generally as any failure by the Company to pay an amount owed under the Notes
when due (subject to cure periods), a default with respect to other indebtedness of the Company  resulting  in
acceleration of such indebtedness, the commencement of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, or the cessation of
business.  If an event of default occurs under the Notes, the holder(s) of a majority-in-interest of the outstanding
principal amount of the Notes may declare the outstanding principal amount thereof to be immediately due and
payable and pursue all available remedies, including taking possession of the assets of the Company and selling them
to pay the amount of debt then due, plus expenses, in accordance with applicable laws and procedures.

The Company incurred debt issuance costs of approximately $0.1 million, which were recorded as a debt discount and
are being amortized to interest expense over the repayment period for the loan using the effective interest rate
method.  The interest expense related to the debt discount during the year ended December 31, 2016 was
approximately $37,000 and the remaining unamortized debt discount was approximately $0.1 million.

In August 2016, the first semi-annual interest payment was made in-kind with the issue of an additional note (Interest
Note) to the Purchasers.  The Interest Note has a principal amount of approximately $336,000 and has terms identical
to the Notes.  As of December 31, 2016, the Notes and Interest Note could be converted into a maximum of 980,649
shares of common stock at $8.50 per share, excluding the effects of future payments of interest in-kind.

Future repayments on outstanding convertible notes payable (excluding unamortized discount of $0.1 million as of
December 31, 2016) are as follows: (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,
2017 $ — 
2018 $ 8,336 

$ 8,336 
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Note 12: Related Party

In February 2012, the Company entered into a strategic development and marketing agreement with Credo
Semiconductor (Hong Kong) Ltd. (Credo), a privately-funded, fabless semiconductor company, to develop, market
and sell integrated circuits. Two of the Company's executive officers between them loaned a total of $250,000 to
Credo for a portion of the seed funding needed by Credo to commence its integrated circuit design efforts. These loans
were repaid by Credo in August 2015. The strategic development and marketing agreement, as amended, calls for the
Company to make payments to Credo upon Credo achieving certain development and verification milestones towards
the development of IC products and provides the Company with exclusive sales and marketing rights for such IC
products. As of December 31, 2016, the Company has paid Credo $4.8 million for achievement of development
milestones, as well as for mask costs and wafer purchases from third-party vendors. All amounts incurred have been
recorded as research and development expenses. Currently, under the strategic development and marketing agreement,
the Company is entitled to a remaining reimbursement amount of $3.5 million of development costs based on
payments made to Credo to date. This amount is subject to increase as additional payments are made to Credo. The
reimbursement will be funded by the gross profits earned by the Company from the sale of the products, with the
initial gross profits being primarily applied to reimbursing the Company for these development payments and a
portion paid to Credo.  Once the full amount has been reimbursed, the gross profits will be shared equally by the
Company and Credo.
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Note 13: Subsequent Events

Reverse Stock Split

On February 14, 2017, the Company filed a certificate of amendment to its amended and restated certificate of
incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware to effect a one-for-ten reverse stock split of the
Company’s shares of common stock. Such amendment and ratio were previously approved by the Company’s
stockholders and board of directors, respectively.

On February 16, 2017, the Company effected the one-for-10 reverse stock split of its common stock.  As a result of
the reverse stock split, every ten shares of the Company’s pre-reverse split outstanding common stock was combined
and reclassified into one share of common stock. Proportionate voting rights and other rights of common stock holders
were not affected by the reverse stock split. No fractional shares were issued in connection with the reverse stock split;
stockholders who would otherwise hold a fractional share of common stock received cash in an amount equal to the
product obtained by multiplying (i) the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock on the effective date of the
reverse stock split, by (ii) the number of shares of the Company’s common stock held by the stockholder that would
otherwise have been exchanged for the fractional share interest. All stock options and restricted stock units
outstanding and common stock reserved for issuance under the Company’s equity incentive plans immediately prior to
the reverse stock split were adjusted by dividing the number of affected shares of common stock by 10 and, as
applicable, multiplying the exercise price by 10, as a result of the reverse stock split. The common stock par value was
adjusted to $0.001 in conjunction with the reverse stock split.

Conversion of Interest Payable to Note

In February 2017, the Company made payment of interest on the Notes and the Interest Note for the period from
August 2016 to February 15, 2017 in-kind with the issue of an additional note to the Purchasers (Interest Note
2).  Interest Note 2 has a principal amount of approximately $420,000 and has terms identical to the Notes and the
Interest Note.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except par value)

September 30, December 31, 
2017 2016

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,784 $ 8,766
Short-term investments  — 1,002
Accounts receivable, net 1,719 559
Inventories 1,246 1,451
Prepaid expenses and other 1,815 473
Total current assets 7,564 12,251

Property and equipment, net 748 1,274
Goodwill 13,276 13,276
Intangible assets, net 139 223
Other 68 121
Total assets $ 21,795 $ 27,145

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 203 $ 561
Deferred revenue 2,360 271
Convertible notes payable 9,148  —
Accrued expenses and other 2,061 2,502
Total current liabilities 13,772 3,334

Convertible notes payable  — 8,250
Other long-term liabilities 296 233
Total liabilities 14,068 11,817

Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)

Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000 shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding  —  —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 120,000 shares authorized; 8,068 shares
and 6,630 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2017 and

 8  7
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December 31, 2016, respectively
Additional paid-in capital 231,881 229,341
Accumulated deficit (224,162) (214,020)
Total stockholders’ equity 7,727 15,328
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 21,795 $ 27,145

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, 
2017 2016 2017 2016

Net revenue
Product $ 2,231 $ 1,205 $ 4,297 $ 3,612
Royalty and other 222 368 752 1,045
Total net revenue 2,453 1,573 5,049 4,657

Cost of net revenue 1,256 658 2,590 2,484
Gross profit 1,197 915 2,459 2,173
Operating expenses
Research and development 1,436 3,927 7,234 14,043
Selling, general and administrative 1,244 1,450 3,659 4,543
Restructuring charges 50  — 1,052 676
Total operating expenses 2,730 5,377 11,945 19,262
Loss from operations (1,533) (4,462) (9,486) (17,089)
Interest expense (238) (217) (685) (464)
Other income (expense), net 32 (2) 45 43
Loss before income taxes (1,739) (4,681) (10,126) (17,510)
Income tax provision  4 20 16 60
Net loss $ (1,743) $ (4,701) $ (10,142) $ (17,570)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net unrealized gains / (losses) on available-for-sale
securities  — (1)  — 15
Comprehensive loss $ (1,743) $ (4,702) $ (10,142) $ (17,555)
Net loss per share
Basic and diluted $ (0.22) $ (0.71) $ (1.43) $ (2.66)
Shares used in computing net loss per share
Basic and diluted 7,938 6,609 7,092 6,592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 
2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (10,142) $ (17,570)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 573 780
Stock-based compensation 552 1,794
Amortization of intangible assets 84 83
Amortization of debt issuance costs 33 23
Accrued interest 656 440
(Gain)/loss on disposal of assets (12)  5
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,160) 103
Inventories 205 173
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,289) 343
Accounts payable (390) (759)
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 1,931 (383)
Net cash used in operating activities (8,959) (14,968)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (26) (646)
Net proceeds from sale of assets 12  —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities 2,604 40,612
Purchases of marketable securities (1,602) (28,749)
Net cash provided by investing activities 988 11,217
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,989 363
Proceeds from the issuance of notes payable, net of issuance costs  — 7,879
Payments on capital lease obligations  — (123)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,989 8,119

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,982) 4,368

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 8,766 5,640
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,784 $ 10,008
Supplemental disclosure:
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Issuance of convertible notes in settlement of accrued interest $ 854 $ 336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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MOSYS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Note 1. The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

MoSys, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in California in September 1991, and reincorporated in September 2000
in Delaware. The Company’s strategy and primary business objective is to be an intellectual property (IP)-rich fabless
semiconductor company focused on the development and sale of integrated circuit (IC) products. The Company’s
solutions deliver time-to-market, performance, power, area and economic benefits for system original equipment
manufacturers. The Company has developed two families of ICs under the Bandwidth Engine® and LineSpeed™
product names. Bandwidth Engine ICs combine the Company’s proprietary 1T-SRAM® high-density embedded
memory, integrated macro functions and high-speed serial interface with its intelligent access technology and a highly
efficient interface protocol. The LineSpeed IC product line is comprised of non-memory, high-speed serial interface
devices with clock data recovery, gearbox and retimer functionality, which convert lanes of data received on line cards
or by optical modules into different configurations and/or ensure signal integrity. In the quarter ended September 30,
2017, the Company notified its customers that it intends to discontinue the LineSpeed IC product line. The Company
is currently supporting existing LineSpeed IC customers and accepting last-time product orders. Going forward, the
Company expects to focus all of our efforts on the Bandwidth Engine IC product line. Historically, the Company’s
primary business was the design, development, marketing, sale and support of differentiated IP, including embedded
memory and high-speed parallel and SerDes I/O used in advanced systems-on-chips. The Company’s future success
and ability to achieve and maintain profitability depends on its success in developing a market for its ICs.

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a basis that
assumes that the Company will continue as a going concern and contemplates the realization of assets and the
satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business and have been prepared without audit in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  

The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016 has been derived from the audited consolidated
financial statements at that date. Certain information and disclosures normally included in financial statements
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) have been
condensed or omitted in accordance with these rules and regulations. The information in this report should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in its most recent annual
report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC.

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all
adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to summarize fairly the Company’s financial
position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods presented. The operating results for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2017 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year
ending December 31, 2017 or for any other future period.
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Liquidity

The Company incurred a net loss of $10.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and had an
accumulated deficit of $224.2 million as of September 30, 2017. In addition, the Company incurred net losses
of approximately $32.0 million and $31.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
These and prior year losses have resulted in significant negative cash flows for almost a decade and have required the
Company to raise substantial amounts of additional capital. To date, the Company has primarily financed its
operations through multiple offerings of common stock to investors and affiliates, as well as asset sale transactions. In
March 2016, the Company entered into a 10% Senior Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement with the
purchasers of $8.0 million principal amount of 10% Senior Secured Convertible Notes due August 15, 2018 (the
Notes), at par, in a private placement transaction. The Notes bear interest at the annual rate of 10%. Accrued interest is
payable semi-annually in cash or in-kind through the issuance of identical new Notes, or with a combination of the
two, at the Company’s option. Since issuance of the Notes, the Company has made the interest payments in-kind
through the issuance of additional notes totaling
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approximately $1.2 million.  Further, the Notes restrict the ability of the Company to incur any indebtedness for
borrowed money, unless such indebtedness by its terms is expressly subordinated to the Notes in right of payment and
to the security interest of the Note holder(s) in respect to the priority and enforcement of any security interest in
property of the Company securing such new debt; provided that the Note holder(s) security interest and cash payment
rights under the Notes shall be subordinate to a maximum of $5 million of indebtedness for a secured accounts
receivable line of credit facility under certain conditions (See Note 8). The Notes are payable in full in August 2018.

The Company expects to continue to incur operating losses for the foreseeable future as it secures customers for and
continues to invest in the commercialization of its IC products. The Company will need to increase revenues
substantially beyond levels that it has attained in the past in order to generate sustainable operating profit and
sufficient cash flows to continue doing business without raising additional capital from time to time.  As a result of the
Company’s expected operating losses and cash burn for the foreseeable future, recurring losses from operations, and
the need to repay the Notes and accrued interest in 2018, if the Company is unable to raise sufficient capital through
additional debt or equity arrangements, there will be uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to maintain liquidity
sufficient to operate its business effectively, which raises substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern within one year from the date of issuance of these condensed consolidated financial statements. These
condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from this uncertainty.
There can be no assurance that such additional capital, whether in the form of debt or equity financing, will be
sufficient or available and, if available, that such capital will be offered on terms and conditions acceptable to the
Company. As further discussed in Note 10, in April 2017, the Company initiated restructuring activities and has
effected reductions in its workforce and associated operating expenses, net loss and cash burn as part of its efforts to
sustain its business.  The Company’s primary focus is producing and selling its Bandwidth Engine products, and it has
substantially curtailed new product development.  If the Company is unsuccessful in these efforts, it will need to
implement additional cost reduction strategies, which could further affect its near- and long-term business plan. These
efforts may include, but are not limited to, further reducing headcount and curtailing business activities.

Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The
Company’s fiscal year ends on December 31 of each calendar year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses recognized during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Investments
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The Company has invested its excess cash in money market accounts, certificates of deposit, commercial paper,
corporate debt, government-sponsored enterprise bonds and municipal bonds and considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Investments with
original maturities greater than three months and remaining maturities less than one year are classified as short-term
investments. Investments with remaining maturities greater than one year are classified as long-term investments.
Management generally determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. All securities are
classified as available-for-sale. The Company’s available-for-sale short-term investments are carried at fair value, with
the unrealized holding gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss. Realized gains and losses
and declines in the value judged to be other than temporary are included in the other income, net line item in the
condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The cost of securities sold is based on the
specific identification method.
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures the fair value of financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels:

Level 1— Inputs used to measure fair value are unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the
identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.

Level 2— Pricing is provided by third party sources of market information obtained through the Company’s investment
advisors, rather than models. The Company does not adjust for, or apply, any additional assumptions or estimates to
the pricing information it receives from advisors. The Company’s Level 2 securities include cash equivalents and
available-for-sale securities, which consist primarily of certificates of deposit, corporate debt, and government agency
and municipal debt securities from issuers with high-quality credit ratings. The Company’s investment advisors obtain
pricing data from independent sources, such as Standard & Poor’s, Bloomberg and Interactive Data Corporation, and
rely on comparable pricing of other securities because the Level 2 securities are not actively traded and have fewer
observable transactions. The Company considers this the most reliable information available for the valuation of the
securities.

Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and reflect the use of significant
management judgment are used to measure fair value. These values are generally determined using pricing models for
which the assumptions utilize management’s estimates of market participant assumptions. The determination of fair
value for Level 3 investments and other financial instruments involves the most management judgment and
subjectivity.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts to ensure that its trade receivables balances are not
overstated due to uncollectibility. The Company performs ongoing customer credit evaluations within the context of
the industry in which it operates and generally does not require collateral from its customers. A specific allowance of
up to 100% of the invoice value is provided for any problematic customer balances. Delinquent account balances are
written off after management has determined that the likelihood of collection is remote. The Company grants credit
only to customers deemed creditworthy in the judgment of management. There was no allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable at either September 30, 2017 or December 31, 2016.

Inventory
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The Company values its inventories at the lower of cost, which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis,
or net realizable value. The Company records inventory reserves for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable
inventories based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. Once a reserve is established, it is
maintained until the product to which it relates is sold or otherwise disposed of. If actual market conditions are less
favorable than those expected by management, additional adjustment to inventory valuation may be required. Charges
for obsolete and slow moving inventories are recorded based upon an analysis of specific identification of obsolete
inventory items and quantification of slow moving inventory items.  The Company recorded no inventory
write-downs during three or nine months ended September 30, 2017 or 2016.

Revenue Recognition

General

The Company generates revenue from the sales of IC products and licensing of its IP. The Company recognizes
revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or performance has occurred, the sales price is
fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Evidence of an arrangement generally consists of
signed agreements or customer purchase orders.
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IC products

The Company sells products both directly to customers, as well as through distributors. Revenue from sales directly to
customers is generally recognized at the time of shipment. The Company may record an estimated allowance, at the
time of shipment, for future returns and other charges against revenue consistent with the terms of sale. IC product
revenue and costs relating to sales made through distributors with rights of return or stock rotation are generally
deferred until the distributors sell the product to end customers due to the Company’s inability to estimate future
returns and credits to be issued. Distributors are generally able to return up to 10% of their purchases for slow,
non-moving or obsolete inventory for credit every six months. At the time of shipment to distributors, an accounts
receivable for the selling price is recorded, as there is a legally enforceable right to receive payment, and inventory is
relieved, as legal title to the inventory is transferred upon shipment. Revenues are recognized upon receiving
notification from the distributors that products have been sold to end customers. Distributors provide information
regarding products and quantity, end customer shipments and remaining inventory on hand. The associated deferred
margin is included in the accrued expenses and other line item in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Royalty

The Company’s licensing contracts typically provide for royalties based on the licensee’s use of the Company’s memory
technology in their currently shipping commercial products. The Company recognizes royalties in the quarter in which
it receives the licensee’s report.

Cost of Net Revenue

Cost of net revenue consists primarily of direct and indirect costs of IC product sales and engineering personnel costs
directly related to maintenance and support services specified in licensing agreements. Maintenance and support
typically include engineering support to assist in the commencement of production of a licensee’s products.

Goodwill

In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment (ASU No. 2017-04), which eliminates step 2, the computation
of the implied fair value of goodwill to determine the amount of impairment, from the goodwill impairment test. In
computing the implied fair value of goodwill for step 2 under current accounting standards, the Company calculates
the fair value of its assets and liabilities (including unrecognized assets and liabilities) as if acquired or assumed in a
business combination. Under the amendments in this update, the Company will determine the amount of goodwill
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impairment, by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount. To the extent the carrying
value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a goodwill impairment charge is recognized. ASU No. 2017-04 is
effective for the Company for annual and interim impairment tests beginning January 1, 2020 with early adoption
permitted. The Company has elected to early adopt the new standard effective January 1, 2017, because the ASU
significantly simplifies the evaluation of goodwill for impairment.

The Company has determined that it has a single reporting unit for purposes of performing its goodwill impairment
test. As the Company uses the market approach to determine the step one fair value, the price of its common stock is
an important component of the fair value calculation. If the Company’s stock price continues to experience significant
price and volume fluctuations, this will impact the fair value of the reporting unit, which can lead to potential
impairment in future periods. The Company reviews goodwill for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company first
assesses qualitative factors to determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than the carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform an impairment test. If the
qualitative assessment warrants further analysis, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit to its
carrying value. The fair value of the reporting unit is determined using the market approach. If the fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of net assets of the reporting unit, goodwill is not impaired. If the carrying
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its fair value, then the Company must record an impairment charge equal
to the difference. The Company performed its annual test for goodwill impairment as of September 1, 2017, and
performed a subsequent test on September
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30, 2017.  In both tests, the Company’s fair value exceeded its carrying value of net assets and, as such, there was no
additional impairment of goodwill.

Reverse Stock Split

On February 14, 2017, the Company filed a certificate of amendment to its amended and restated certificate of
incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware to effect a one-for-ten reverse stock split of the
Company’s shares of common stock. Such amendment and ratio were previously approved by the Company’s
stockholders and board of directors, respectively.

On February 16, 2017, the Company effected the one-for-ten reverse stock split.  As a result of the reverse stock split,
every ten shares of the Company’s pre-reverse split outstanding common stock was combined and reclassified into one
share of common stock. Proportionate voting rights and other rights of common stock holders were not affected by the
reverse stock split. No fractional shares were issued in connection with the reverse stock split; stockholders who
would otherwise hold a fractional share of common stock received cash in an amount equal to the product obtained by
multiplying (i) the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock on the effective date of the reverse stock split,
by (ii) the number of shares of the Company’s common stock held by the stockholder that would otherwise have been
exchanged for the fractional share interest. All stock options and restricted stock units outstanding and common stock
reserved for issuance under the Company’s equity incentive plans immediately prior to the reverse stock split were
adjusted by dividing the number of affected shares of common stock by 10 and, as applicable, multiplying the exercise
price by 10, as a result of the reverse stock split. The common stock par value was adjusted to $0.001 in conjunction
with the reverse stock split.

Per Share Amounts

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per share gives effect to all potentially dilutive common
shares outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive common shares consist of incremental shares of common
stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options, vesting of stock awards and purchases under the employee stock
purchase plan.

The following table sets forth securities outstanding which were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per
share as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):

September 30,  
2017 2016
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Options outstanding to purchase common stock 248 558
Employee stock purchase plan  — 47
Unvested restricted common stock units 385 150
Convertible debt 1,021 926
Outstanding warrants 663  —
Total 2,317 1,681

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss includes unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities.  Realized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss and included in other income,
net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.  All amounts recorded in the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 were not considered significant.
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Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are capitalized and amortized to interest expense using the effective interest
method.  Unamortized debt issuances costs are presented in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as a direct
deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability and accounted for as debt discounts.

Note 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments outstanding were (in thousands):

September 30, 2017
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,784 $  — $  — $ 2,784

December 31, 2016
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 8,766 $ — $  — $ 8,766
Short-term investments:
U.S.
government-sponsored
enterprise bonds $ 762 $ — $  — $ 762
Corporate notes 240  —  — 240
Total short-term
investments $ 1,002 $ — $  — $ 1,002

The following table represents the Company’s fair value hierarchy for its financial assets (cash equivalents and
investments) as of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in thousands):
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September 30, 2017
Fair ValueLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $ 620 $ 620 $  — $ —

December 31, 2016
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $ 84 $ 84 $ — $ —
U.S. government-sponsored enterprise bonds 3,767 — 3,767 —
Municipal bonds 4,027  — 4,027  —
Corporate notes 480 — 480 —
Total assets $ 8,358 $ 84 $ 8,274 $  —

There were no transfers in or out of Level 1 and Level 2 securities during the three or nine months ended
September 30, 2017 or 2016.

Note 3. Balance Sheet Detail

September 30, December 31, 
2017 2016
(in thousands)

Inventories:
Work-in-process $ 1,071 $ 1,270
Finished goods 175 181

$ 1,246 $ 1,451
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Identifiable intangible assets were (dollar amounts in thousands):

September 30, 2017
Gross Net

Life Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(years) Amount Amortization Amount

Patent license 7 $ 780 $ 641 $ 139

December 31, 2016
Gross Net

Life Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(years) Amount Amortization Amount

Patent license 7 $ 780 $ 557 $ 223

Amortization expense has been included in research and development expense in the condensed consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss.  The estimated aggregate amortization expense to be recognized in
future years is less than $0.1 million for the remainder of 2017 and $0.1 million in 2018.

Note 4. Commitments and Contingencies

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into contractual arrangements under which it may agree to
indemnify the counterparties from any losses incurred relating to breach of representations and warranties, failure to
perform certain covenants, or claims and losses arising from certain events as outlined within the particular contract,
which may include, for example, losses arising from litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such
indemnification clauses may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. The Company has also entered into
indemnification agreements with its officers and directors. No material amounts were reflected in the Company’s
condensed consolidated financial statements for the three or nine months ended September 30, 2017 or 2016 related to
these indemnifications.
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The Company has not estimated the maximum potential amount of indemnification liability under these agreements
due to the limited history of prior claims and the unique facts and circumstances applicable to each particular
agreement. To date, the Company has not made any material payments related to these indemnification agreements.

Legal Matters

The Company is not a party to any material legal proceeding that the Company believes is likely to have a material
adverse effect on its consolidated financial position or results of operations. From time to time the Company may be
subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. These claims, even if not meritorious, could
result in the expenditure of significant financial resources and diversion of management efforts.

Note 5. Business Segments, Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

The Company operates in one business segment and uses one measurement of profitability for its business.  Net
revenue attributed to the United States and to all foreign countries is based on the geographical location of the
customer.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash, cash equivalents, short‑term investments and accounts receivable. Cash, cash equivalents and
short‑term investments are deposited with high credit‑quality institutions.
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The Company recognized revenue from shipment of product and licensing of its technologies to customers by
geographical location as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, 
2017 2016 2017 2016

North America $ 1,915 $ 937 $ 3,698 $ 2,905
Japan 384 398 755 1,103
Taiwan 123 209 463 581
Rest of world 31 29 133 68
Total net revenue $ 2,453 $ 1,573 $ 5,049 $ 4,657

Customers who accounted for at least 10% of total net revenue were:

Three Months
Ended

Nine Months
Ended

September 30, September 30, 
2017 2016 2017 2016

Customer A 43 %  * %  44 %  * %
Customer B 24 %  41 %  15 %  47 %
Customer C 15 %  25 %  15 %  23 %
Customer D * %  13 %  * %  12 %

*     Represents less than 10%

Three customers accounted for 78% of accounts receivable, net at September 30, 2017. One customer accounted for
72% of accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2016.

Note 6. Income Tax Provision

The Company determines deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon the differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities using tax rates in effect for the year in which the Company
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expects the differences to affect taxable income. A valuation allowance is established for any deferred tax assets for
which it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company files U.S. federal and state and foreign income tax returns in jurisdictions with varying statutes of
limitations.  All tax returns from 2012 to 2016 may be subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service,
California and other states. Returns filed in foreign jurisdictions may be subject to examination for the years 2008 to
2016.  As of September 30, 2017, the Company has not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits related to
uncertain tax positions.

Note 7. Stock-Based Compensation

The expense relating to stock options is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, usually
the vesting period, based on the grant-date fair value. The unamortized compensation cost, net of expected forfeitures,
as of September 30, 2017 was $1.1 million related to stock options and is expected to be recognized as expense over a
weighted-average period of approximately 1.9 years.  The expense related to restricted stock units (RSUs) is
recognized over a three-to-five year vesting period and is based on the fair value of the underlying stock on the dates
of grant.  The unamortized compensation cost, net of expected forfeitures, as of September 30, 2017 was $0.6 million
related to RSUs and is expected to be recognized as expense over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.4
years.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, there were no excess tax benefits associated with
the exercise of stock options due to the Company’s loss positions.
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Valuation Assumptions

There were no stock options granted during the three months ended September 30, 2017. The fair value of the
Company’s stock options granted for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 was estimated on the grant
dates using the Black-Scholes valuation option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 
2017 2016

Risk-free interest rate 1.6% 1.0% - 1.2%
Volatility 70.2% 61.4% - 63.8%
Expected life (years) 4.0 4.0 - 5.0
Dividend yield 0% 0%

The risk-free interest rate was derived from the Daily Treasury Yield Curve Rates, as published by the U.S.
Department of the Treasury as of the grant date for terms equal to the expected terms of the options. The expected
volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock price over the expected term of the options. The
expected term of options granted was derived from historical data based on employee exercises and post‑vesting
employment termination behavior. A dividend yield of zero is applied because the Company has never paid dividends
and has no intention to pay dividends in the near future.

The stock‑based compensation expense recorded is adjusted based on estimated forfeiture rates. An annualized
forfeiture rate has been used as a best estimate of future forfeitures based on the Company’s historical forfeiture
experience. The stock‑based compensation expense will be adjusted in later periods if the actual forfeiture rate is
different from the estimate.

Common Stock Options and Restricted Stock

A summary of the option and RSU activity under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
(the Plan) is presented below (in thousands, except exercise price):

Options outstanding
Weighted
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Shares Average
Available Number of Exercise
for Grant Shares Prices

Balance at January 1, 2017 114 522 $ 13.88
Additional shares authorized under the Plan 50  — —
RSUs cancelled and returned to the Plan  5  — —
Options granted (1)  1 $ 2.36
Options cancelled and returned to the Plan 15 (15) $ 6.94
Balance at March 31, 2017 183 508 $ 14.06
RSUs cancelled and returned to Plan 37  —  —
Options cancelled and returned to Plan 172 (172) $ 10.20
Balance at June 30, 2017 392 336 $ 16.04
RSUs granted (407)  — —
RSUs cancelled and returned to Plan  8  — —
Options cancelled and returned to Plan 88 (88) $ 14.83
Balance at September 30, 2017 81 248 $ 16.47

The Company also has awarded options to new employees outside of the Plan and may continue to do so, as material
inducements to the acceptance of employment with the Company, as permitted under the Listing Rules of the Nasdaq
Stock Market. These grants must be approved by the compensation committee of the board of directors, a majority
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of the independent directors or, below a specified share level, by an authorized executive officer. As of September 30,
2017, there were no awards outstanding that had been granted outside of the Plan

A summary of RSU activity under the Plan is presented below (in thousands, except for fair value):

Weighted
Average

Number of Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value

Non-vested shares at January 1, 2017 148 $ 8.13
Vested (54) $ 11.64
Cancelled (5) $ 5.30
Non-vested shares at March 31, 2017 89 $ 6.16
Cancelled (37) $ 5.75
Non-vested shares at June 30, 2017 52 $ 6.46
Granted 407 $ 0.93
Vested (66) $ 0.95
Cancelled (8) $ 5.30
Non-vested shares at September 30, 2017 385 $ 1.58

In the nine months ended September 30, 2017, the Company paid approximately $22,000 for employee income taxes
related to net share settlement of vested RSUs.

The total intrinsic value of the RSUs outstanding as of September 30, 2017 was $0.4 million.

The following table summarizes significant ranges of outstanding and exercisable options as of September 30, 2017
(in thousands, except contractual life and exercise price):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average Aggregate

Number Life Exercise Number Exercise Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding (in Years) Price Exercisable Price value
$2.36 - $7.19 19 6.44 $ 5.07 12 $ 5.30
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$7.20 - $16.99 122 8.35 $ 7.20 49 $ 7.20
$17.00 - $20.49  4 3.79 $ 17.00  4 $ 17.00
$20.50 - $30.89 45 7.42 $ 20.50 39 $ 20.50
$30.90 - $41.89 41 0.61 $ 36.44 41 $ 33.41
$41.90 - $46.20 17 4.16 $ 44.01 17 $ 44.01
$2.36 - $46.20 248 6.40 $ 16.47 162 $ 21.34 $  —
Vested and expected to vest 240 6.32 $ 16.77 $  —
Exercisable 162 5.11 $ 21.34 $  —

There were no stock options exercised during the nine months ended September 30, 2017 or 2016.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In June 2010, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). A total of
200,000 shares of common stock were initially reserved for issuance under the ESPP in 2010. On September 1, 2010,
the Company commenced the first offering period under the ESPP. In May 2015, the Company’s stockholders
approved an amendment increasing the number of shares reserved for issuance by 200,000 shares. The ESPP, which is
intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, is administered by the board of directors or the
compensation committee of the board of directors. The ESPP provides that eligible employees may purchase up to
$25,000 worth of the
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Company’s common stock annually over the course of two six-month offering periods. The purchase price to be paid
by participants is 85% of the price per share of the Company’s common stock either at the beginning or the end of each
six-month offering period, whichever is less.

In February 2017, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors elected to suspend the ESPP plan.  ESPP
Plan participants were refunded their payroll contributions for the then open purchase period.

Note 8. Convertible Notes

On March 14, 2016, the Company entered into a 10% Senior Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the
Purchase Agreement) with the purchasers of $8,000,000 principal amount of 10% Senior Secured Convertible Notes
due August 15, 2018 (the Notes), at par, in a private placement transaction effected pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The conversion price of the Notes is $9.00 per
share and is subject to adjustment upon certain events, as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to a security
agreement entered into by the Company, the Notes are secured by a security interest in all of the assets of the
Company.

The Notes bear interest at the annual rate of 10%. Accrued interest is payable semi-annually in cash or in-kind through
the issuance of identical new Notes, or with a combination of the two, at the Company’s option. The Notes are
noncallable and nonredeemable by the Company. The Notes are redeemable at the election of the holders if the
Company experiences a fundamental change (as defined in the Notes), which generally would occur in the event (i)
any person acquires beneficial ownership of shares of common stock of the Company entitling such person to exercise
at least 40% of the total voting power of all of the shares of capital stock of the Company entitled to vote generally in
elections of directors, (ii) an acquisition of the Company by another person through a merger or consolidation, or the
sale, transfer or lease of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, or (iii) the Company’s current directors cease to
constitute a majority of the board of directors of the Company within a 12-month period, disregarding for this purpose
any director who voluntarily resigns as a director or dies while serving as a director. The redemption price is 120% of
the principal amount of the Note to be repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest as of the redemption date.

The conversion price of $9.00 per share of common stock shall be reset, if, prior to the maturity date, the Company
sells new shares of capital stock, or other securities convertible into or exercisable for capital stock, in a financing
with one or more accredited investors that yields proceeds to the Company (net of transaction fees, expenses and
discounts and commission) of at least $1,000,000 at a price lower than the then applicable conversion price in effect
immediately before the closing of such financing; provided that in no event shall the applicable conversion price be
reset to less than $8.50 per share of common stock.  The Notes are subject to anti-dilution adjustments for stock splits,
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No Note holder shall be entitled to convert such holder’s Notes if effective upon the applicable conversion date (i) the
holder would have beneficial ownership of more than 9.9% of the voting capital stock of the Company as determined
in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (with exceptions specified in
the Purchase Agreement), or (ii) if the shares are being acquired or held with a purpose or effect of changing or
influencing control of the Company, or in connection with or as a participant in any transaction having that purpose or
effect, as determined in the sole discretion of the board of directors of the Company. There is no required sinking fund
for the Notes. The Notes have not been registered for resale, and the holder(s) do not have registration rights.

The Notes restrict the ability of the Company to incur any indebtedness for borrowed money, unless such
indebtedness by its terms is expressly subordinated to the Notes in right of payment and to the security interest of the
Note holder(s) in respect to the priority and enforcement of any security interest in property of the Company securing
such new debt; provided that the Note holder(s) security interest and cash payment rights under the Notes shall be
subordinate to a maximum of $5,000,000 of indebtedness for a secured accounts receivable line of credit facility
provided to the Company by a bank or institutional lender; and, provided further, that in no event may the amount of
indebtedness to which the  security interest of the Note holder(s) is subordinated exceed the outstanding balance of
accounts receivable less than 90 days old for which the Company has not recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts
pledged under such credit facility.
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The Notes define an event of default generally as any failure by the Company to pay an amount owed under the Notes
when due (subject to cure periods), a default with respect to other indebtedness of the Company  resulting  in
acceleration of such indebtedness, the commencement of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, or the cessation of
business.  If an event of default occurs under the Notes, the holder(s) of a majority-in-interest of the outstanding
principal amount of the Notes may declare the outstanding principal amount thereof to be immediately due and
payable and pursue all available remedies, including taking possession of the assets of the Company and selling them
to pay the amount of debt then due, plus expenses, in accordance with applicable laws and procedures.

The Company incurred debt issuance costs of approximately $0.1 million, which were recorded as a debt discount and
are being amortized to interest expense over the repayment period for the loan using the effective interest rate
method.  The interest expense related the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 was approximately
$11,000 and $33,000, respectively.  The remaining unamortized debt discount was approximately $42,000.

In August 2016, the first semi-annual interest payment was made in-kind with the issue of an additional note (Interest
Note) to the Purchasers.  The Interest Note has a principal amount of approximately $336,000 and has terms identical
to the Notes.  In February 2017, the second semi-annual interest payment was made in-kind with the issue of an
additional note (Second Interest Note) to the Purchasers.  In August 2017, the third semi-annual interest payment was
made in-kind with the issue of an additional note (Third Interest Note) to the Purchasers. The Second Interest Note
and Third Interest Note have principal amounts of approximately $420,000 and $434,000, respectively, and have
terms identical to the Notes.  As of September 30, 2017, the Notes, Interest Note, Second Interest Note and Third
Interest Note could be converted into a maximum of 1,081,166 shares of common stock at $8.50 per share, excluding
the effects of future payments of interest in-kind.

The outstanding convertible notes payable of $9.2 million (excluding unamortized discount of approximately $42,000
as of September 30, 2017) are due in August 2018.

Note 9. Stockholders’ Equity

On July 6, 2017, the Company sold to certain institutional investors an aggregate of 1,325,000 shares of common
stock at a purchase price of $1.70 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds to the Company of $1,989,000, net of
transaction expenses.
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In a concurrent private placement, the Company also sold to each of the purchasers a warrant to purchase one half of a
share of the common stock for each share purchased for cash in the offering, pursuant to a common stock purchase
warrant, by and between the Company and each Purchaser (each, a “Warrant,” and collectively, the “Warrants”)
representing in the aggregate rights to purchase 662,500 shares of common stock at the exercise price. The Warrants
will be exercisable on January 6, 2018 at an exercise price of $2.35 per share and will expire on January 6, 2023.

The Warrants will be exercisable on a “cashless” basis if at any time after the six month anniversary there is not an
effective registration statement for the resale of the warrant shares in place, or there is not a current resale prospectus
then available. 

Note 10. Restructuring Charges

In the second quarter of 2017, the Company effected a reduction in its workforce and associated operating expenses,
net loss and cash burn. The Company reduced headcount by approximately 60% with the majority of the reductions
occurring in its Santa Clara facility.  As a result of the restructuring, the Company recorded approximately $1.0
million of charges for severance benefits and future obligations under computer-aided design software licenses. In the
third quarter of 2017, the Company closed its Japanese branch and Iowa locations and further reduced headcount
resulting in additional expenses of $0.1 million. The Company expects to incur future additional charges related to this
restructuring activity in the range of $0.2 million to $0.3 million, primarily in the form of relocation costs, in the
fourth quarter of 2017. 
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Expenses related to the restructuring activity are included in the restructuring charges line on the condensed
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The short-term portion of the remaining liability is
included in accrued expenses and other and the long-term portion in other long-term liabilities on the condensed
consolidated balance sheet.  Restructuring activity was as follows (in thousands):

Contractual
obligations

Workforce and other

reduction
termination
costs Total

Balance as of March 31, 2017 $ — $ — $  —
Restructuring charge 458 594 1,052
Cash payments (458) (119) (577)
Balance as of September 30, 2017 $  — $ 475 $ 475

Note 11. Subsequent Events

Lease Termination

On October 3, 2017, the Company entered into a lease termination agreement with M West Propco XII LLC (“MWest”)
under which the Company and MWest agreed to terminate the Company’s lease for its current headquarters facility
located in Santa Clara, California effective October 31, 2017.  In connection with the lease termination, the Company
incurred fees of approximately $250,000, most of which will be paid in cash during the quarter ending December 31,
2017.

On October 3, 2017, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with Cyren, Inc. ("Cyren") under which the
Company will sublease a new headquarters facility located in San Jose, California from Cyren for a term of 36 months
commencing November 1, 2017. The monthly rent and common-area costs under the new facility lease will be
approximately $21,600, and compare with monthly rent and common-area costs for the Santa Clara facility of
approximately $88,930.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THE PROSPECTUS

Item 13. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

The following table sets forth the estimated costs and expenses payable by the registrant in connection with the
offering of the securities being registered.

SEC registration fee $ 194 
Accounting fees and expenses $ 10,000 
Legal fees and expenses $ 20,000 
Printing and miscellaneous expenses $ 1,500 
Total $ 26,694 

Item 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or the DGCL, authorizes a court to award, or a corporation’s
board of directors to grant, indemnity to directors and officers in terms sufficiently broad to permit such
indemnification under certain circumstances for liabilities (including reimbursement for expenses incurred) arising
under the Securities Act.

As permitted by the DGCL, our bylaws provide that we shall indemnify our directors and officers, and may indemnify
our employees and other agents, to the fullest extent permitted by law. The bylaws also permit us to secure insurance
on behalf of any officer, director, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise against any liability arising out of his or her actions in that capacity if he or she is serving at our request.
We have obtained officer and director liability insurance with respect to liabilities arising out of various matters,
including matters arising under the Securities Act.

We have entered into agreements with our directors that, among other things, indemnify them for certain expenses
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by them in any action or proceeding,
including any action by us or in our right, arising out of the person’s services as a director or officer of ours or any
other company or enterprise to which the person provides services at our request.

Item 15. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On July 6, 2017, we sold warrants to purchase an aggregate of 662,500 shares of our common stock to purchasers of
shares of our common stock in a concurrent public offering of registered on Form S‑3. The warrants and the shares of
our common stock issuable upon the exercise of the warrants were not registered under the Securities Act, pursuant to
the exemption provided in Section 4(a)(2) under the Securities Act and Rule 506(b) promulgated thereunder.

On August 23, 2016, we accepted for cancellation exchanged options to purchase an aggregate of 4,569,959 shares of
common stock and issued from the Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan replacement options covering
3,340,273 shares of common stock. The exchange was effected pursuant to the exemption from registration provided
under Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The option exchange resulted in a net reduction in
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the number of shares underlying our outstanding derivative equity securities of 1,229,686.

On March 14, 2016, we entered into a 10% Senior Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement with the purchaser
of $8,000,000 principal amount of 10% Senior Secured Convertible Notes due August 15, 2018, at par, in a private
placement transaction effected pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of
1933 pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) thereof.
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Item 16.

Reference is hereby made to the attached Exhibit Index, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 17. Undertakings.

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:

(1)  To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement:

(i)   To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933.

(ii)  To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the
most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental
change in the information set forth in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or
decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was
registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in
the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume
and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the
“Calculation of Registration Fee” table in the effective registration statement.

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.

Provided, however, that paragraphs (1)(i), (1)(ii) and (1)(iii) above do not apply if the registration statement is on
Form S‑1, Form S‑3, Form SF‑3 or Form F‑3 and the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment
by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the Registrant pursuant to
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration
statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration
statement.

(2)  That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post- effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the
offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3)  To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which
remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

(4)  That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:

(A) Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(shall be deemed to be part of the registration
statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and
(B) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424  for the purpose of providing the information required
by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement
as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of
sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. For liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is
at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating
to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that

Edgar Filing: MALLESCH EILEEN A - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 127



time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof; provided, however, that no statement made in a
registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or
deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement
will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement
that was made
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in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document
immediately prior to such effective date; or
(5)  That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant’s
annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each
filing of an employee benefit plan’s annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)
that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement
relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the provisions described in Item 15 above, or otherwise,
the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is
against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a
director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is
asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant
will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of
appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the
Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION
3.1(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant 

3.1.1(1A) Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant

3.2(2) Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant

4.1(3) Specimen Common Stock Certificate 

4.4(4) Rights Agreement, dated November 10, 2010, by and between Registrant and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A., as Rights Agent

4.4.1(4) Form of Right Certificate

4.4.2(4) Summary of Rights to Purchase Shares

4.4.3(5) Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated July 22, 2011, by and between Registrant and Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A. as Rights Agent

4.4.4(6) Amendment No. 2 to Rights Agreement, dated May 18, 2012, by and between Registrant and Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A. as Rights Agent

4.5(7) Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant

5.1** Opinion of Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP

10.1(3) Form of Indemnity Agreement between Registrant and each of its directors and executive officers

10.2(8) Placement Agency Agreement

10.3(9)* 2000 Stock Option Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder

10.3.1(10)* Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option and Equity Incentive Plan

10.4(11)* Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option and Equity
Incentive Plan

10.5(12)* Form of New Employee Inducement Grant Stock Option Agreement

10.6(13)* Employment offer letter agreement and Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate between Registrant and
Leonard Perham dated as of November 8, 2007

10.7(14) Form of Securities Purchase Agreement

10.8(15)* Employment offer letter agreement between Registrant and James Sullivan dated December 21, 2007
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465910058160/a10-20986_1ex3d6.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000155837017000604/mosy-20170214ex319e9145f.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465908066560/a08-26938_1ex3d4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000091205700041425/a2025213zex-4_1.txt
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465910058160/a10-20986_1ex4d4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465910058160/a10-20986_1ex4d4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465910058160/a10-20986_1ex4d4d1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465910058160/a10-20986_1ex4d4d2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465911041016/a11-21631_1ex4d2d3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465911041016/a11-21631_1ex4d2d3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465912039720/a12-12802_1ex4d2d4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465912039720/a12-12802_1ex4d2d4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465917042948/a17-15893_3ex4d1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000091205700034797/ex-10_1.txt
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465917042948/a17-15893_3ex10d2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000091205700034797/ex-10_5.txt
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000104746904030679/a2144371zdef14a.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465905037778/a05-12796_1ex10d15.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465905037778/a05-12796_1ex10d15.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000104746908002918/a2183589zex-10_25.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000104746908002918/a2183589zex-10_24.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000104746908002918/a2183589zex-10_24.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000110465917042948/a17-15893_3ex10d1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/890394/000104746908002918/a2183589zex-10_26.htm


10.9(16)* Change-in-control Agreement between Registrant and James Sullivan dated January 18, 2008

10.10(17)* Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan

10.11(18)* Form of Option Agreement for Stock Option Grant pursuant to 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
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10.12(19)* 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

10.13 Reserved

10.14(20)* Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award and Agreement

10.15(21) Lease Termination Agreement with M West Propco XII LLC dated October 3, 2017

10.16(22) Sublease Agreement with Cyren, Inc. dated October 3, 2017

10.17 Reserved

10.18 Reserved

10.19(23)* Form of New Employee Inducement Grant Stock Option Agreement (revised February 2012)

10.20(24)* Stock Option Agreement between Registrant and Leonard Perham dated as of November 1, 2011

10.21 Reserved

10.22(25) Form of Indemnification Agreement used from June 5, 2012

10.23 Reserved

10.24(26)* Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Unit Award and Agreement under the Amended and
Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan

10.25(27)* Employment Offer Letter Agreement between Registrant and John Monson dated February 21, 2012

10.26(28) 10% Senior Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement

10.27(29) Security Agreement

10.28(30) 10% Senior Secured Convertible Note due August 15, 2018

10.29 Reserved

10.30(31)* Executive Change-in-Control and Severance Policy

21.1** List of Subsidiaries

23.1** Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm – BPM LLP

23.2 Consent of Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1)

24 Power of Attorney (filed as part of signature page to Registration Statement)
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101
The following financial information from MoSys, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10‑Q for the period ended
September 30, 2017, filed with the SEC on November 14, 2017, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as
of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, (iii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for
the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, and (iv) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.

* Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
** Filed herewith.
(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Form 8‑K filed by the Company on November 12, 2010 (Commission

File No. 000‑32929).
(1A) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8‑K filed by the Company on February 14, 2017 (Commission

File No. 000‑32929).
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Form 8‑K filed by the Company on October 29, 2008 (Commission

File No. 000‑32929).
(3) Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S‑1, as amended,

originally filed by the Registrant with the SEC on August 4, 2000, declared effective June27, 2001 (Commission
File No. 333‑43122).

(4) Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 8‑K by the Registrant on November 12, 2010
(Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2.3 to the Current Report on Form 8‑K, filed by the Registrant on July 27,
2011 (Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2.4 to the Current Report on Form 8‑K, filed by the Registrant on May 24,
2012 (Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8‑K, filed by the Registrant on June 30,
2017 (Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(8) Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to Form 8‑K by the Registrant on June 30, 2017
(Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S‑1, as amended,
originally filed August 4, 2000, declared effective June 17, 2001 (Commission File No. 333‑43122).

(10) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company’s proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed by the
Company on October 7, 2004 (Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Form 10‑Q filed by the Company on August 9, 2005 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10‑K filed by the Company on March 17, 2008 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Form 10‑K filed by the Company on March 17, 2008 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8‑K by the Registrant on June 30, 2017 (Commission File
No. 000‑32929).

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Form 10‑K filed by the Company on March 17, 2008 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Form 10‑K filed by the Company on March 17, 2008 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to From S‑8 filed by the Company on August 8, 2014 (Commission File
No. 000‑197989).

Edgar Filing: MALLESCH EILEEN A - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 134



(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to Form S‑8 filed by the Company on July 28, 2010 (Commission File
No. 333‑168358).

(19) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed by the Company on
May 26, 2010 (Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Form S‑8 filed by the Company on June 5, 2009 (Commission File
No. 333‑159753).
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(21)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 14, 2017
(Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(22) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 14, 2017
(Commission File No. 000‑32929).

(23) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Form 10‑K filed by the Company on March 15, 2012 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(24) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Form 10‑Q filed by the Company on May 9, 2012 (Commission File
No. 000‑32929).

(25) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Form 10‑Q filed by the Company on August 9, 2012 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(26) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Form 10‑K filed by the Company on March 14, 2014 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(27) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10‑K filed by the Company on March 14, 2014 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(28) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8‑K filed by the Company on March 15, 2016 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(29) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8‑K filed by the Company on March 15, 2016 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929).

(30) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8‑K filed by the Company on March 15, 2016 (Commission
File No. 000‑32929 (Commission File No. 333‑159753).

(31) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99(D)(7) to Schedule TO filed by the Company on July 26, 2016
(Commission File No. 005‑78033), as amended).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of San Jose, State of California, on
January 25, 2018.

MOSYS, INC

By: /s/ Leonard Perham
Leonard Perham
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director (principal executive officer)

By: /s/ James W. Sullivan
James W. Sullivan
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal accounting officer and principal financial officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes
and appoints Leonard Perham and James W. Sullivan, and each one of them, acting individually and without the other,
as his or her attorney-in-fact, each with full power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any and all
amendments to this Registration Statement (including post-effective amendments), and to sign any registration
statement for the same offering covered by this Registration Statement that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to
Rule 462(b) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, and all post-effective amendments thereto, and to file the
same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes may
do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement has been signed
by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ Leonard Perham Chief Executive Officer, President and Director (principal executive
officer)

January 25,
2018

Leonard Perham

/s/ James W. Sullivan Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal accounting officer
and principal financial officer)

January 25,
2018

James W. Sullivan
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/s/ Stephen L.
Domenik*

Director January 25,
2018

Stephen L. Domenik

/s/ Daniel Lewis* Director January 25,
2018

Daniel Lewis

/s/ Daniel O’Neil* Director January 25,
2018

Daniel O’Neil

* By James W. Sullivan, attorney-in-fact
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